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December 27, 2006

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and Citizens of the City of Palm Coast:

This report consists of management representations concerning the finances of the City of Palm
Coast. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of all the information presented in this report. As management, we assert that, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material
respects.

The City of Palm Coast's financial statements have been audited by James Moore & Co., P.L., a
firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City of Palm Coast for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2006, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent
auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of the report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City was part of a broader federal
mandated single audit designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The
standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not
only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the City's internal controls
and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal
requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are in the
compliance section of this report.

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) require that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to
complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City of Palm Coast's MD&A
can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the Government

Palm Coast is situated in the eastern portion of Flagler County, mostly east of U.S. Route 1 and
north of State Road 100. The community straddles Interstate Highway 95 and extends to the
Intercoastal Waterway on the eastern side of the City.

Developed by ITT Corporation, in 1969, the original development plan encompassed 48,000
home sites on approximately 42,000 acres (65.62 square miles) of the 68,000 acres owned by
ITT. Paved street and central water and sewer serve all lots developed within the City. An
extensive water management system was designed to replenish the area’s water table, which
includes 26 miles of freshwater canals and 23 miles of saltwater canals.
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[n 1975, the Flagler County Board of County Commissioners established the Palm Coast
Service District, including almost 40 000 acres. Funds for the district were derived primarily
from ad valorem taxes and were ulilized to provide fire services, fire hydrants, street
maintenance and lighting, animal control and emergency services.

In September 1999, the citizenry of Palm Coast voted overwhelmingly by a margin of two to one
to incorporate as a council/manager form of government. On December 31, 1899, the City of
Palm Coast was officially incorporated. On October 1, 2000, all services were officially
transferred from the former Service District to the City of Palm Coast. The five-member City
Counci! is elected at large and serves staggered four-year terms. One member is elected as
Mayor. The promulgation and adoption of pelicy are the responsibility of the Council and the
execution of such policy is the responsibility of the council appointed city manager. The City
hired its first city manager on April 17, 2000.

The City of Palm Ccast currently has a population of 67,832 residents and covers an area of
approximately 65 square miles. For fiscal year 2007, property within the City has a taxable
value of $6,239,894 488, an increase of over 40 percent from 2008, The City’s property tax rate
for fiscal year 2007 is $3.25 per $1,000 of taxable value.

The City provides a wide range of services including development services, fire services, street
censtruction ang maintenance, parks, and recreational activities. Palm Coast contracts with the
Flagler County Sheriff for law enforcement services.

Economic Qutlook

The City has seen an increase in the amount of commercial construction activity within the past
few months and expects this trend to continue. The first retail stcres have recently opened on
some of the outlying parcels in the "Town Center" development and additional large retail stores
are currently in the approval process. When completed this development will cover
approximately 1,500 acres and will include a downtown commercial area, industrial sites, and
multi-family residential housing. Additicnal projects in this development are expected {o be
underway sccn. Construction on the internal parcels is expected to begin in 2007.

The Cobblestone Village is a large scale retail project that will be anchored by a home
improvement center and several large retail stores. Site work has begun with construction to
begin in 2007. The project is located close to 1-85 and Palm Coast Parkway and will bring much
needed and desired shopping opportunities for Palm Coast residents and visitors to our City.

Ground was broken on December 18, 2006 for water plant #3, which is expected to provide
service to Palm Coast Park, a Development of Regional Impact. Paim Coast Park is a 4,740
acre development located in the northwest portion of the City. This project will provide property
for commercial development aleng US Highway 1 and space for industrial development and
single and multi-family housing. The water piant will also heip to provide improved water
service to the western and northern portions of the City. Several single and multi-family projects
have been submitted for approva!l and should begin construction in 2007,

Several smaller projects are in various stages of the planning and approval process throughout
the City. These projects incltude office, retail, industrial, restaurant, and medical facilities. The
original Palm Coast Resort is being replaced by a larger more modern facility that will have
condominiums, a hotel, and a conference center.
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Like most areas, Palm Coast has experienced a significant decline in single-family home starts
over the past year. In fiscal year 2008, the City issued 1,692 single-family building permits
compared to 3,287 during fiscal year 2005. It is expected that a more sustainable 400 to 500
single-family building permits will be issued in 2007 and the foreseeable future. There are
currently over 20,000 platted, undeveioped, single-family residential lots within the city.

Future Programs

As mentioned earlier, construction has begun on water plant #3. The project will include the
development of a new well field and the installation of transmission lines along US Highway 1.
In 2008, construction is scheduled to begin on wastewater treatment plant #2, which will be
located on the same site as water plant #3. This will aliow for the sharing of an administrative
facility which will help reduce costs.

A neighborhood park is under design for Rymfire Drive, adjacent to a new elementary school.
This will be a shared facility with the school. The City is trying to locate sites for a second
community park and for a municipal golf course. A study is underway to determine the need for
another community center.

Two additional fire stations are anticipated for construction in 2007 and 2008. This will bring the
number of City fire stations to five.

Two major road projects wilt be underway during the next two to three years. Design work for
the four-laning of Belle Terre Parkway north of Palm Coast Parkway is nearing cempleticn and
right-of-way acquisition is being done at this time. Construction on Bslle Terre Parkway is
scheduled to begin in 2007. The four-laning of Old Kings Road scouth of Palm Coast Parkway is
in the engineering and design phase. This project is associated with the development of Town
Center and other development along Old Kings Road and should be under construction in late
2007,

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Paim
Coast for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2005. This is the fifth year that the government has achieved this prestigious award. In order to
be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Cerificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’'s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another certificate.

The City of Palm Coast also received the GFOA Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for
its Fiscal Year 2006 budget document. This is the third time that the City has received this
award.
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IAMES MOORLE & CO. P L

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor, City Council, and City Manager,
City of Palm Coast, Florida:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activitics, the business-tvpe
activities, cach major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Palm Coast, Flonda,
as of and for the vear ended September 30, 2006, which collectively comprise City of Palm Coast.
Florda's basic financial statemenis as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of City ot Palm Coast, Florida's management. Our responsibility 1 to express opinions on
these financial statements hased on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
Amenica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmenr Auditing Standards,
1ssued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abour whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining. on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall {inancial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonabie basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all matenal respects. the
respeciive financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities. each major fund.
and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Palm Coast, Florida, as of September 30, 2006,
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thercof for the vear
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Governmenr Auditing Standards, we have also 1ssued our report dated December 13,
2006, on our consideration of City of Palm Coast, Flonda’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of jts compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts. and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our tesiing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of ar audit performed in accordance with Gevernment Auditing Standards and should be considered i
assessing the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information. as listed in the table
of contents, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amenca. We have applied
certain limited procedures. which consisted principally of inquiries of menagement regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did
not audit the information and express no opinion on it.
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Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise City of Palm Coast, Florida’s basic financial statements. The introductory section. combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical tables are presented for purpases of
additional analvsis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, [.ocal Governiments, and Non-
Profit Organizations, and 1s also not a required part of the basic financial statements of City of Palm
Coast, Florida. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and. in our opinion. are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical tables have not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and.
accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

%/am/é&.

Daxvtona Beach. Florida
December 13, 2006
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The City of Palm Ceast management’s discussicn and analysis is designed to (a) assist the
reader in focusing on significant financiai issues, (b) provide an overview of the City's financial
activity, (c) identify changes in the City's financial position (its ability to address the next and
subsequent year challenges), (d} identify any material deviations from the financial plan (the
approved budget), and (g) identify individual fund issues or concerns.

Financial Highlights

¢+ The assets of the City of Palm Coast exceeded its liabilities at the close of fiscal year
2006 by 3301,166,247. Of this amount, $30,943.406 may be used to meet the City's
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

+« The City's total net assets increased by $47,353,345  Approximately 68% of this
increase was attributable to one-time resources such as impact fees and developer
contributions.

s As of the close of fiscal year 2008, the City's governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $55,272,508, an increase of $19,356,311 over the prior year.
Approximately, 87% of this total amount or $48,004,610 is reported as unreserved fund
balance.

« At the end of fiscal year 20086, unreserved/undesignated fund balance in the general
fund was $12,404,524, or 51% of total general fund expenditures.

« The City of Paim Coast’s total debt increased by $8,091,552 during the current fiscal
year. The City obtained two State Revolving Fund (SRF) loans to expand and improve
the water and wastewater utility that serves the City. An additional SRF loan was
obtained in fiscal year 2006 for stormwater system improvements. There was also an
increase in compensated absences for the year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annua! report consists of four parts - management’s discussion and analysis (this section),
the basic financial statements, required supplementary informaticn, and an optional section that
presents combining statements for nonmajor governmental funds. The basic financial
statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the City:

« The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both
long-term and short-term information about the City's overalt financial status.

« The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of
the City government, reporting the City's operations in more detail than the government-
wide statements.

- The governmental funds statements tell how general government services like
public safety were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future
spending.

- The proprietary funds statements give the results of the City’s business-type
activities.



The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial
statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required
supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial
statements. In addition to these required elements, we have included a section with combining
statements that provide details about our nonmajor governmental funds, each of which are added
together and presented in single columns in the basic financial statements. The remainder of this
overview section of management's discussion and analysis explains the structure and contents of
each of the statements.

Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting
methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net assets
includes all of the government's assets and liabilities. All of the current year's revenues and
expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or
paid.

The two government-wide statements report the City's net assets and how they have changed.
Net assets - the difference between the City's assets and liabilities - is one way to measure the
City's financial heaith, or position.

s QOver time, increases or decreases in the City's net assets are an indicator of whether its
financial health is improving or deteriorating.

s To assess the overall health of the City you need to consider additionai non-financial
factors such as changes in the City's property tax base and the condition of the City's
roads.

The governmental activities include most of the City's basic services, such as law enforcement,
fire, public works, parks, and general administration. Property taxes and intergovernmental
revenues finance most of these activities. Business-type activities of the City of Palm Coast
include a water and sewer utility, solid waste c¢ollection, and stormwater management which are
funded by user fees.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental funds. The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about
the City's most significant funds - not the City as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that
the City uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes.
Some funds are required by Florida Statute or other regulations. The governmental funds,
focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in
and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Conseguently, the
governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that heips you determine
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to
finance the City's programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-
term focus of the government-wide statements, we provide additional information at the bottom
of the governmental funds statement, or on the subsequent page, that explains the relationship
(or differences) between them.
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The City of Palm Coast maintains nine individual governmental funds. Five of the governmental
funds are classified as non major and are summarized under this heading in the governmental
fund presentation. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet
and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances for the general fund, capital projects fund, transportation impact fee fund. streets
improvement fund, and non major governmental funds, all of which are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for non major governmentai funds is provided in
the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriation budget for its general, capital projects, transportation
impact fee, streets improvement, and non major governmental funds. A budgetary comparison
schedule has been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

Proprietary funds. The City of Palm Coast maintains four proprietary funds. Three of these
are enterprise funds. They are the utility fund, solid waste fund, and stormwater fund.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in
the government-wide financial statements. The fleet management fund is an internal service
fund. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs
internaily among the City of Paim Ceast's various functions.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, oniy in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information of the utility, solid waste, and stormwater funds which are considered to be major
funds of the City. The interna! service fund is shown in a separate coiumn, but not included in
the totals for proprietary funds.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide
financial statement because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City of
Palm Coast's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for
proprietary funds. The City maintains one fiduciary fund, which is the volunteer firefighters'’
pension fund.

Financial Analysis of the City as a Whole

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's
financial position. In the case of the City of Palm Coast assets exceeded liabiities by
$301,166,247 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

Of the net assets. 10.2 percent falls in the unrestricted category. These may be used tc meet
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. Investment in capital assets makes up 74 percent
of the City of Palm Coast's net assets. These capital assets are used to provide services to
citizens and therefore are not available for future spending. Although the investment in capital
assets is reported net of related debt used to acquire the assets, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other scurces, since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liguidate these liabilities.
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Table |
City of Paim Coasl's Capital Assets

Governmental Acyvities Business-type Activities Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Current and other assets 3 B2493832 5§ 42410145 § 356227689 § 35307273 8§ 38118601 8 77717 418
Capital assets 200.543.320 188.178.407 130.876.513 109.264.111 331.418.833 267.438.518
Total assets 263.037.152 230.588 552 166.499. 282 144 568.384 429.536.434 375.156 936
Lang-term liatilities 1.425644 1.073.632 114.096.933 105.357.383 115.522.577 108.431.025
Other liabilities £.139.368 5.636.381 6,708,242 8.276.828 12.8347 610 14,513,005
Total dabilities 7.565.012 7.710.013 120,805,175 113.634.021 128.370.187 121,344 034
Net assets:
invesied « capitai assets. net
of related aebt 200,314,305 188.058 574 20287134 13.854 835 220.598. 439 201 913.269
Restricted 34.114.771 20.366 845 15.509.631 7.733.922 49.624 402 28.600.767
Unrestricted 21.04€.064 13.853.120 9.897.342 9.345.746 30.543.406 23.298.865
Tolal net assets § 255472140 $§ 222878538 5 456894107 5§ 30934363 § 301166247 § 253812902
Tatle ||
City of Palm Coast's Changes in Net Assets
Covemmental Adivities Businesstype Adtjvities Tctal
20006 2005 2006 205 2006 2008
Fenerues:
Program revenues:
Charmes for senices S 9280074 § BIET54 5 32579083 5 26H45883 § 41830157 § 34503467
Cperating grants and contributons 2481156 2032933 267326 - 5.154 382 2062833
Capxtal grants and cortribubors 19.533.215 16.970.920 9743906 17.760.957 2277121 3A7IETT
General revenues’
Property taxes 14720743 10.218.772 - - 14720753 10.218772
Cther taes 5 D47 387 4530124 - - 5.047 367 4,630,134
Intergovemmenta 3310748 2730.825 - - 3310748 2730825
Ciher 4.177.807 1.600.677 132,951 (183.284) 43110758 1417 393
Total reverues 58.551.121 45,541 835 45,129,166 44 123,566 103,680,287 50.655.401
Expenses:
General §.721.368 6821382 - - 8.721.369 6.821.382
Public safety £.339.495 4 450 045 - - 5.339.4% 4.450.045
Transportation ard physical emaronmert B.776.023 7.054. 196 - - 8.776.023 7064196
Cuiture & recreation 2.101.421 1.896.730 - - 2.101.421 1696.730
Uity - - 2323085 18667175 22.325.065 18667 179
Salid Vaste - - 4358 544 3733373 4,355,944 373373
Storm Water - - 3660413 1.270.065 3680413 1270065
interast on longtem debt 15.208 B/NT - - 19,208 307
Total expenses 25957 520 20,061.370 30.369.422 23670617 56.326,942 43 731,987
Imcrease in net assets 32 553,601 26.480 465 14759 744 20452 945 47 383345 46933414
Net assets - begirning 222 878,538 196, 308074 30,934,363 10.481.414 253.812.902 206.875.488
Net assets - endirg § 255472140 % 222878536 5 45634107 § 30OM B3 § 1166247 § 253512902
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Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased the City of Paim Coast's net assets by $32,593,601 during
the current fiscal year. This represents 89 percent of the total growth in net assets for the City.
Buiidings and infrastructure account for over $10 million of the increase. The remainder was
primarily impact fees restricted for future construction projects. Restricted net assets increased
by $13,247,928 during the fiscal year. Restricted developer contributions of $7,271,000 and
impact fees account for this increase.

Business-type Activities
Business-type activities increased the City of Palm Coast's net assets by $14,759,744 or 31
percent of the total growth in net assets. The increase in net assets is primarily attributable to

capital grants and contributions. Restricted net assets increased by 37,775,709 during the fiscal
year. Water and sewer impact fee collections account for this increase.

13



Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities
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Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type Activities
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Financial Analysis of the Government’'s Funds

Governmental funds. The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of
the current fiscal year, unreserved/undesignated fund balance in the general fund was
$12,404,524, with an additional $1,168.033 designated as a disaster reserve. The total fund
balance stood at $14.675,850. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to
compare both unreserved and total fund balance to fund expenditures. Unreserved fund
balance represents 51 percent of total general fund expenditures versus 50 percent for fiscal
year 2005 Total fund balance represents 60 percent of the total general fund expenditures
versus 58 percent for fiscal year 2005.

The fund balance of the City of Palm Coast's general fund increased by $3,046,846 during the
current fiscal year. Key factors in this growth are as foilows:
 Property tax revenue increased about $2.3 million in the current year. There was no
change in the millage rate. Charges for services increased about $1 million for the
current year.

The capital projects fund has a total fund balance of $7,469 828, an increase of $3,931.793. A
portion of the total property tax revenue is allocated to this fund to cover capital expenditures.
The transportation impact fee fund balance was $22,902,665, an increase of $11,926,571. This
increase is primarily reflective of impact fees and developer contributions for future construction
projects. The streets improvement fund balance was $2 564,884, This was a non-major
governmental fund in previous years.

The other governmental funds have a total fund balance $7,658,083. This was an increase of
$12 936 during the current fiscal year. The Park Impact Fee Fund accounts for 67 percent of
the total fund balance. The remainder was spread over several special revenue funds.

Proprietary funds. The City of Palm Coast's proprietary funds provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the utility fund were $9,400,193 at the end of the year, with the total
fund balance at $42,018,346. The unrestricted net assets decreased $73,131 for the year.

The solid waste funds unrestricted net assets of $(464,731) represents a decrease of $357,946.
Increases in operating costs contributed to the decrease.

The stormwater funds unrestricted net assets of $358,276 represents an increase of $738,184.
This increase is primarily due to operating contributions during the year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget totaled $768,000. Most
of the change was due to an increase in the code enforcement budget of $575,000. There were
minor changes in expenditures in other departments throughout the year. During the year,
revenues exceeded the final amended budget by $3 806,834, This was the result of higher than
expected tax collections and intergovernmental revenues related to growth. Permit revenue
also exceeded budget expectations. Expenditures were less than the final amended budget by
$4,338,037. Vacancies in Building & Code Administration, Public Works and projects that were
not completed are the primary reasons for this difference.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Paim Coast's investment in capital assets as of September 30,
2006, amounts to $331.419 833 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital
assets includes land, buildings, improvements, infrastructure, machinery and equipment. This is
an increase of $33.980,315 for the current fiscal year. Most of the increase is related to the
expansion and improvement of the utility system during the year. The rest of the increase can
be aftributed to the improvements to city streets, and construction of parks and recreation
facilities.

Table il
Ciy of Palm Caoast's Capital Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Tatal
2006 2005 2008 2005 2006 2005
—and § 63808144 5 G7.837121 § 13032557 S 12283100 § 82840701 8§ 80.136.22°
Buildings and impravemants
sther than bulldings 13.490.289 9.510.586 45 681.576 30.185.780 59.181 865 39.696.375
Infrastructure 105.186.924 101.035.517 B4 307 682 48.251 48B3 165 454 606 145.287.00C
Equipment 7036133 8.158.3569 753564 435.545 7.789.697 5,555,918
Construchion In prograss 5.021.830 3635814 7.08%.134 18.088.185 12.112.964 21.724.003
Total $ 200.543.320 & 188178407 § 130876513 & 108261111 § 331415833 § 257.435.515

Additional informaticn on the City of Palm Coast's capital assets can be found in Note 6 on page
50 of this report.

Long-term debt. The City of Palm Coast owes $94 805,000 in revenue bonds used for the
purchase and expansion of the utility system. The City owes $228,072 on two loans used to
purchase equipment through fleet management. There is a CDBG loan with a balance of
$167.812 and State Revolving Fund loans of $18,844,279 for utility and stormwater

improvements. The remainder of the long-term debt is made up of capital leases and
compensated absences. The total long-term debt of the City is $115,522,577.

Table IV
City of Falm Coast's Long-term Debt

Sovernmental Activities

Business-type Activities Total
2008 2005 2006 2005 2006 2008
coans from ather governments S 167 812 § 199880 S 18844275 § 84151582 $ 19.012.0%1 3 3.815.032
Loars fram financial institutians 228072 92,801 2258072 92.801
Revenue bonds - 94.805.000 58 650.000 %4 505.000 98.650.000
Capital leases 3.944 27.033 - 3.944 27.033
Campensated absences 1.025 816 753918 447.6554 292,241 1.473.470 1.046.159
Total $ 1425844 § 1073832 §& 114.096933 $ 106357393 § 115522577 § 106.431.025
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Additional information on the City of Palm Coeast's long-term debt can be found in Note 8
beginning on page 54 of this report.

Next Year's Budget and Rates

During the current fiscal year, unreserved/undesignated fund balance in the General Fund
increased to $12,404,524 plus an additional $968,856 reserved for encumbrances. The City of
Palm Coast has appropriated $3,860,226 of the unreserved fund balance for spending in the
2007 fiscal year budget. After encumbrance and project carryovers, the available fund balance,
as a percentage of prior year expenditures and transfers out is 33 percent.

The City Council approved a millage rate of 3.25 mills for fiscal year 2007. This is a reduction of
.15 mills or 4.4% from the fiscal year 2006 rate. The City Council has designated .75 mills for
capital projects.

Requests for Information

This financiai report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers. and creditors with
a general overview of the City of Palm Coast's financial condition and to demonstrate the City's
accountability for the money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need
additional financial information you may contact the City of Palm Coast as follows:

City of Palm Coast

Financial Services

2 Commerce Boulevard

Palm Coast, FL 32164-3128

Or
Telephone (386) 8986-3725

Fax (386)988-3724
E-mail rbritt@ci.palm-coast.fl.us
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City of Palm Coast, Florida

Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2006

ASSETS
Equity in pooied cash and investmenis
Recewvables - net
Due from cther covernments
Frepaid tems
Inventories
Unamortized bond premium
Unamortized dent issuance costs
Laoan acquisition costs
Qther Assets
Restricted assets
Equdty In pooiad cash and investments
Due from other governments
Prepaid items
Capita. assets (net ¢° accumulated depreciation):
Land
Buidings anc improvements other than bulldings
Infrastructure
Equipment
Caonstruction In progress
Totai assets

LIABILITIES
Accourts payab e and ather current liab:lities
Due to other governments
Internal balances
Custemer deposits
Unearned reven.ue
Payable from restricted assets:
Accrued bong interest payable
Accounts payable
Contrac: payable
Naoncurrent liabitties:
Due within orie year
Due in more tharn one year
Total lianilities

NET ASSETS
Invested In capital assets. net of related debs

Restricted for:
Constructicn
Bond debt service
Putlic safety

Unrestricted

Total net assets

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

3 60134 597 3 7,418,438 57 951.0368
486,326 5596 585 6082811
1772662 - T 772862
50.686 1.000 51 686
32 585 436264 468 B79
- i1320.308) {1.320.308)
- 3171875 3174875
- 304 762 304 762
16.978 - 16.976
- 18 887 253 18 887 258
- 803 571 803 571
- 225293 225283
£5.808.144 13 032,557 82 840.701
13,450 288 45 681,576 55 181.865
105,186 924 B4,307.682 169.494 606
7.036133 753.564 7 789.857
5.021.830 7.091.134 12.112.864
263037 152 166.485 282 479 536 434
2781874 1131024 3912 888
454 917 - 464 517

603,604 (603.604) -
2215126 2.577.902 4793028
73.847 - 73847
- 2.202.936 2202936
- 1.023.324 ©.023.324
- 376,860 374 860
T44 344 2.843.868 3588013
681.300 111,253 264 111.634 564
7.565.012 120.805 175 128370187
200.311.308 20287 134 220 588 439
34 0141614 13.629.631 47 643,792
- 1.880.000 1.880.000
100.810 - 1GE.610
21.046.064 9,857,342 30 943 408
5 255472140 5 45,694,107 301 166 247

The notes te the financial staterments are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Palm Coast, Florida
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2008

Functions/Programs
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government
Pupic safety
Transpertation and physical envirenmen?
Culture and recreation
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmertal activities

Business-type activities.
Utility
Soid Waste
Storm Water

Totas business-type activities

Program Revenues

Charges for

Qperating
Grants and

Capital
Grants and

Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions
& 8721369 § B8.477.215 - 3 -
6.339.409 214074 §7 681 1.026.616
8.776.023 344155 2.393.485 18,16C.001
2.101.421 244 830 - 2346 598
19.208 - - -
$ 25857520 § 9.280.074 2481.186 8  18.533.215
22.325.065 25 503.330 - §.599.955
4.355.944 4 003.781 - -
3.680.413 3.071.952 2673226 143.951
s 30369422 & 32,579.083 2673226 § 5.743.508

General revenues:
Propenrty taxes
Sales and use taxes
Telecommunication services tax

intergovernmental revenue
Corntributions not restricted to specific programs

Unrestrictea :nvestment earnings
Miscellanecus

Gain an sale of capital assets

Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net assets
Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

The notes to the financia: statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net {Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Assets

Governmental  Business-type
Activities Activities Total

3 244 1541 % - S (244 154]
15.011 118 - (5.015.118)
10.121 588 - 10.121.588
485807 - 488 BO7
{16.208) - {*9.208)
5336025 - 5.336.525
- 12.774 220 12774 220
- (356.183) {356.183)
- 2.208.758 2,208 756
- 14.626.753 14,626.753
4720753 - 14720 753
2617198 - 2617.198
2.430.16¢9 - 2.430 169
3.310.740 - 3.310.749
802.047 - 802.047
2.358.173 1.089 712 3.447.885
3571 - 3BT
25,115 - 25115

§56,76" {856.761) -
27,256,678 132.951 27.389.627
32.593.80° 14.759.744 47.353.345
222.878.53% 30.934 363 253,812 902
$ 255472140 5 45684107 § 301,1866.247
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City of Palm Coast, Florida
Balance Sheet

Gaovernmental Funds

September 30, 2006

Transportation Streels Nonmajor Total
Capital Impact Fee Improvement Governmental Governmental
ASSETS General Projects Fund Fund Funds Funds
Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 15874170 § 7555210 § 23789473 § 2021179 § 9245802 35 58.489.934
Accounts recevable - net 290,330 - 4475 - - 254 865
Notes recervable - current 33375 - - - - 33.375
Due from other governments B4 317 144,767 25.658 T12.92C 20.000 1,772,662
Notes receivable - noncurrent 134.437 - - - - 134437
Due from cther funas 1.500.000 170,389 - - - 1.670.388
Prepaid items 40,886 5.000 - - 4.800 50.686
Total assets $ 18737575 § T8BB03IBE § 238108068 T 2734088 3 8274702 % 62 445 348
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable g 533248 S 407,797 3 823183 & 165115 § 115618 & 2.048.962
Accrued liabilities 538,285 2643 43.758 - - B32 640
Due to other governments 464.917 - - - - 454 917
Due to other funds - - - - 1.500.00C 1.500 000
Customer deposits 2215128 - - - - 2215126
Deferred revenue 312.145 - - - - 312145
Totai dabilities 4.061.725 410.440 916,841 169,115 1615619 7.173.840
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances g5k BhE 1,156.424 2582254 187 311 1.060.583 5665428
Notes receivable - nonourrert 134 437 - - - - 134 437
Unreserved:
Designated for:
Disaster reserve 1.168.033 - - - - 1.168.0332
Undesignated, reported in:
Generar fund 12 404 524 - - - - 12,404 524
Special revenue funds - - 20,320.411 2367 673 £.538 500 29.286 584
Capital projects funds - £.313,502 - - - £.313.502
Total fund balances 14675850 7 469,926 22,802,665 2,564 984 7.659.083 55,272,508
Total liapilities and fund balances § 18737575 § 7880366 S 23818606 % 2734088 3§ 9274702 % 62.446.348

Tne notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this staterment.
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City of Palm Coast, Florida
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet {o the Statement of Net Assets
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2006

Fund balances - total governmerial funds 3 55.272.508

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets
are differert because:

Cap:al assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and. therefore. are not reported in the funds. 196.413.136

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide cutrent financial
resources are reported as deferred revenues in the funds. 238.298

Internal services funds are used by management to charge the costs of
fleet lease and maintenance. The assets and liabiiities of the internal
service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement
of net assets. 4732312

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable. are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. {1.184, 114}

Net assets of governmental activities § 255472140
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City of Palm Coast, Florida

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Irtergovernmental revenue
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Impact fees
Contributions
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Tota: revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current;
General government
Public safety
Transportation and phys.ca environment
Culture and recreaticn
Capital cutlay:
General government
Public safety
Transportation and physicai environment
Cuiture and recreation
Dett service:
Principal
tnterest ang Other
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers out
Tota: other financing sources (Uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund palances - beginning - restated
Fund balances - ending

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2006

Transportation Streets Nonmajor Total
Capital impact Fee  tmprovement Governmentai Governmental
General Projects Fund Fund Funds Funds

$ 12989761 8 4294923 % - 3 4297798 3 B8.457 & 21670.63¢9
6.161.259 - - - - 6.161.255
3.889.086 400.000 25658 - 207 687 4,522 431
3.883 515 BY 329 - - - 3.852.844
824 6939 - - - 43769 868.468

- - 8.255 €57 - 3248 214 11,503,871

- 125.000 7.271.000 - - 7,396,000
787.704 303.525 750 355 87.178 397 312 2.326.074
34.831 - - - - 34.831
28.570.855 5192777 18.302.670 4.384.976 3.985439 £8.436.717
10.092 606 38,229 - - - 10 130.835
€.178.208 - - - 11,000 6 189.208
5401745 - 124,338 - 131.900 5657 983
1.773.501 - - - - 1.773 901
326.804 11.799 - - - 338.503

94 476 10.655 - - 65.543 17C.674
374,035 1.031.172 4251 761 3.548.811 1.147 108 10.780.887
212.495 221.425 - - 2715114 3.149.034
55,158 - - - - 55158
9.634 - - - - 9.634
24.519.082 1.313,280 4.378,099 3.048.811 4,070,665 38.225.617
4051793 3.879.457 11.626,571 438.185 (85.226) 20.210.800
668 735 52.296 - - 98.162 819193
i1.673.682) - - - - {1.573 682!
{1.004,847) 52.296 - - 98.182 1854 48%)
3.046.846 3.831.793 11.928 571 438.165 12 836 18 356.311
11 628.004 3.538 133 10.976.084 2.126.819 7 546 147 35516157
§ 14675850 & 7469928 B 22902885 § 7564584 5 T7B59.083 § 55272508

Tne notes to the financiai statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Palm Coast, Florida
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
And Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2006

Net enange in fund balances - tata: governmental furds S 16.356 311

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Governmenta: funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However. in the
statement of activities. the cost of those assets is depreciated over their
estimated useful lives.

Expenditures for capital assets "4.409.198
Less current ygar depreciation {3.768.345) 10.640.853

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resau-ces are not reported as revenues in the funds.
Contributed property and equipmen: 802.047
Revenue colections expected after 60 days 88002

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions invelving capital assets
{.e. sales. trade-ins. and adjustments} is to decrease net assets. i185.8B65)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resourses to
goveramental funds. whie the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
sansumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction. however, has any effect an net assets. Also, the
governmentat funds report the effect of issuance costs when debt s first
issued. whereas amounts are deferred and amortized in the staterment of
activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the
treatment of iong-term debt and related items. 55158

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funas.

Compensated absences {265 310
Internai service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities to individual funds. The net revenue of certain activities of the

-nternal service fund is reponted with governmental activities. 2102 405

Change .n net assets of governmental activities, § 32.593.6C1
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City of Palm Coast, Florida
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Fund
September 30, 2006

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities
Solid Storm Internal Service
Utility Waste Water Total Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Equity in poaled cash and nvestments 3 74168439 3 - 3 - 3 7416438 3 1.644 863
Accounts receivable - net 4,141.281 757 2681 688043 5,596 585 23,645
inventories 436.294 - - 436 294 32,585
Prepaid tams - - 1.000 1.000 -
Restricted current assets:

Cash with fiscal agent 4.082.836 - - 4,082 936 -
Due from other governments 547 353 - 256.218 903.571 -
Total current assets 18,724 303 7o/ 280 955 28T 18 436,825 1.700.897

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Equity in pooled cash ard
investments:
impact fees 14804 322 - - 14 804 322 -
Due frem other governments
Prepaigt construction costs 225293 - - 225293 -
(ther assets B - - - 16.976
Total restricted assets 15025615 - - 1ED29.875 18 5/6
Capitai assets:
Land 12.776.844 - 253.613 13.032 557 -
Building and impravemen-s other
ihan buildings 49 847 218 - 105.24G 50.052 487 -
Infrastructdre B84 137.977 - 5.012.958 68.150.838 -
Equipment 494,999 - 380.204 885203 5673433
127 358.738 - B TeZ0Z% 13312163 575433
Less accumulated deprec.ation 18.265.938) - [69.848) (8.335.784) {1.543.243;
118093 200 - 5882179 123785378 4130184
Canstruction in progress 7.091.134 - - 7.081.134 -
Total capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciaticn) 125.184,334 - 5692179 130 876,513 4 130,184
Due from other funds G947 947 . - 947 947 -
Loan acquisition costs 304.762 - - 3o4.762 -
Unamortized bond premiurm: {1.320.308) - - (1.320.308) -
Unamortized debt issuance costs 3171875 - - 3471875 -
Total noncurrent assets 143.318.225 - 5692179 145.010.404 4147 160
Total assets S 180042528 § 757281 § 5,847.440 8 167.447220 & 5. B48.057
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City of Palm Coast, Florida
Statement of Net Assets (continued)
Proprietary Fund
September 30, 2006

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities
Solid Storm Internal Service
Utility Waste Water Total Funds
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabie 3 485519 3 380514 5§ 184215 § 1034248 3 g7 7459
Loars payable B21 862 - 167 028 788 B88 190 226
Compensated absences 150 188 3467 21126 174,781 5328
Accrued liabilities 82 812 1.343 12621 96778 2473
Customer depaosis 2,677 8902 - - 2.577.902 -
Current liabilities payable from
restricted assets:
Current maturities of bonds payable 1.880.000 - - 1.88C.000 -
Accrued nond interest payable 2,262,838 - - 2,202,938 -
Accounts payable 1.023.324 - - 1.023.324 -
Contract payable 376.660 - - 376 860 -
Total current liabilities w 405,203 385, 324 b4 988 fA. 155 515 285774
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensaled absences 241.347 £.628 24,898 272 873 g.132
Bonds payable §2.925.000 - - 92.925.000 -
Loans payable 15.452.632 - 2.602.75% 18.055.391 37.848
Due to gther funds - 830.040 117.907 947 947 170.388
Total noncurrent liabiities 108.618.979 8.36.068 2.745.504 112 201,271 218387
Total iabkilties 118024182 12271852 3.110.052 122 356,726 5z 14T
NET ASSETS
invested in capital assets. net of
related deb: 17.108.522 - 3.178.612 20,287 134 3.802.112
Restricted for construction 13.629.631 - - 13.629.631 -
Restricted for bond debt serv-ce 1.880.000 - - 1.880.000 .
Unrestricted G.400.193 (484,731 358.276 9,293.738 1433.804
Total net assets 42.018.346 & (464.731) & 3536888 3 45000.503 § 5335916
Agjustment to reflect the
consclidation of internal service fund
activities related to enterpnse funds. 603 604
S 45.694 107

The notes to the financial staements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Palm Coast, Florida
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2006

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities -
Solid Storm internal
Utility Waste Water Totals Service Funds
Cperating revenues.
Charges for services:
Water sales $ 16440801 § - L - S 15440801 8§ -
Sewer charges 8.235.518 - - 8.235.518 -
(Garbage charges - 3.982.553 - 3,982 553 -
Storm Water charges - - 3071982 30718692 -
Miscellanecus 827.011 21.208 - 848.219 2.892.785
Total operating revenues 25.503,330 4 003,761 3.071 682 32.579.083 2892785
Operating expenses
Administrative 3.813,881 - - 3.813.881 1464 744
Water system B.151.800 - - 8.151.800 -
Sewer systam 4.186.541 - - 4,186.541 -
Soid waste system - 4,326 165 - 4,326 185 -
Storm water system - - 3.601.008 3.601.008 -
Depreciation 3.781.087 - 61.780 3.842 867 740,038
Total cperating expenses 17.933.309 4,326.165 3.662.788 25,922 262 2 204783
Operating income [loss) 7.570.021 (322.404; (590.796) 5.656 821 488.002
Nonoperating incame [(expenses]:
Cperating Grants - - 2673226 2673.226 -
[nvestment revenue 1.088.712 - - 1089712 32.059
Interesvamortization expense {4.602.702 {35.542) {53.405) (4.691.64%; {G9.574;
Other - - - - 25116
Tatal nonoperating revenues
iexpensesi {3.512.950) {35.542) 2619621 (928.711) 47 541
income (loss) befare capital contributions
and transfers 4.057.031 {357 B46) 2028025 5.728.110 535,643
Capital grants and contributions 9.5959.955 - 143.951 9.743.806 -
Transfers n 236.732 - - 236.732 1.811.251
Transfers out {1.180.808) - (12.B87) {1.193.493) -
Change in net assets 12.712.912 {357.948) 2160289 14 515,255 2.345 B94
Total net assets - beginning 2G 305,434 (106,785} 1.376.599 2.889 022
Total net assets - ending $ 42018346 % {484 731) % 3.536.888 3 53359815
Adjustment to reflect the
consoclidat.en of internal service fund
actvities related to enterprise funds. 244 485
3 14 758,744

The neies to the financial statements are an integral par of this statement.
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City of Palm Coast, Florida
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2006

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities -
Solid Storm Internal
Cash flows from operating Utitity Waste Water Totals Service Funds
activities
Cash received from customers $ 25200187 % 3815264 § 2845044 % 31860495 § 2885140
Cash paid to supplers (10,409 374} (4.186.274) (2877164} {17.282.812) (1.240 473;
Cash paid to employees {5,158 164) {G7 271) {821.987) (6.077.422) {171.520:
Net cash provided by {used in’ cperating
activities G 632649 (478281 (654 107 B.500.261 1273.147
Cash flow from noncapital
financing activities
Transfers in from other funds 238732 - - 236,732 1.811,251
Transfers out to other funds {1.180.806} - {12.687) {1.163.493) -
Interfund Loan Repayment - - - - [166.639;
Advances to other funds 98 270 - - 98,270 -
Advances from ather fungs - 513.823 (612,093} (98.270) -
Net cash provided by {used n)
noncapital financing activities {845 804) 513,823 (624.780) {956 761) 1.644 612
Cash flow from capitai and related
financing activities
Proceads from 1ssuance of long-term
debt 9601558 - 2504718 12.106.274 302752
Loan Principal Payments (1.895.743) - - (1.896,743) {166.658)
Intarest paid {4.573.595) {35 542 {53.405) {4,662 542) 9574
Acguisition and construstian of
property. plant and equipmert {20.866,515; - [3.847 452 (24,714 007, {1.877 36"
Proceeds from the sale of capizal assets - - - - 38.781
Impact fees and contributions 4.589.955 - 2.575.066 12.275.021 -
Net casn provided by (used in} capial and
related financing activities (8.135.342) (35.5842) 1.278.887 (6.881.997) {1.714 080y
Cash flow from investing activities
Interest on investments 1.089.712 - - 1089712 32.085
Net cash provided by {used inl investing
activities 1.089.712 - - 1.088.712 32,099
Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents 1,741 215 - - 1.741.215 1235778
Beginning cash and cash equivalens 24.562.482 - - 24.562.482 408.885
Ending cash and cash equivalents $ 268303697 5 - $ - % 26303687 % 1.844.663

icontinued)
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City of Palm Coast, Florida
Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2006

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Governmental
{Nonmajor} Activities -
Solid Storm Internal
Utility Waste Water Totals Service Funds
Reconciliation of operating income
to net cash provided by cperating
activities
Qperating income {loss) 3 7570021 8 (322,404} & (590.7948) % 665682 § 438.002
Adiustment to reconcile eperat ng
income to net cash provideg by
operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 3781.087 - £1.780 3.8B42 867 740 039
Change in assets and habilities:
Accounts receivable (818,567} (188.457) {226 348) {1.234,042) (7.845;
Due from other gove'nments §1.382 - - 81.382 -
Inventories (155.810) - - (155.810) 23.857
Accounts payable 199,551 29187 &7 746 316,494 22.484
Accrued liabiities 12.802 543 (158) 13.28% 279
Custemer deposits 434,072 - - 434,072 -
Restricted accounts payabie {1.475,085} - - {1.475.055) -
Compensated abserices 3.088 2.B80 14 267 20.243 £ 588
Net cash provided by {used in)
operating activities 3 5832649 I (478.281) § {654 107) § B500261 $ 1.273.147
Cash and cash equivalents
classified as:
Equity in pocled cash and nvestments in
current assets g 7416439 $ - $ - S 7416438 S 1.6844 663
Restricted equity in pocled cash and
investments
Cash with fiscal agent 4.082 G936 - - 4.082.936 -
Impact fees 14.804.322 - - 14 804,322 -
Tctal restricted equity in pooled cash and
inyestments 18 BB7 258 - - 18 887 258 -
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 26303687 & - S - S 26303887 § 1,644 663

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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City of Palm Coast, Florida
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
September 30, 2006

Volunteer
Firefighter
Pension Fund
ASSETS
Cash and investments % 305.309
Total assets 305.309
LIABILITIES
Tax withhaolaing payable 270
Totai vabilities 270
NET ASSETS
Held in Trust for Pension Benefits
and Other Purposes ) 305.038

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Palm Coast, Florida

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

For the Year Ended September 30, 2006

ADDITIONS
Contribations
Siate contributions
Total contriputions

Investrmant earnings:
Interest
Total investment earnings

Totar additions

SUBTRACTIONS
Benefit Distributions

Total subtractions

Net increase (Decrease)

Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

The notes t¢ the financial statements are an integral pant of this statement.

Fiduciary Funds
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Pensijon Fund

152.845

182.845

58.376

5.376

189.221

2.940

2 940

196.281

108.758
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CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity

The City of Paim Coast, Florida (the "City") was incorporated December 31, 1999 under the
laws of the State of Florida. The City operates under a Council-Manager form of government
and provides the following services as authorized by its charter. public safety (fire and law
enforcement), highways and streets, parks and recreation, public improvements, planning and
zoning, and general administrative services. The accompanying financial statements include
all those separately administered departments and funds for which the City has financial
accountability. There are no potential component units or related organizations of the City.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financiai statements {i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement
of changes in net assets) repert information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City. For
the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues. are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely tc a significant
extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expense of a given
function or segment are cffset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.
Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.
Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as
separate columns in the fund financial statements. The pension trust fund is reported as a
separate financial statement, and is not included in the government-wide financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earmed and expenses are recorded when a liability
is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
Governmental fund financiai statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of
the current period. For this purpose the government considers revenues to be available if they
are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
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CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued}

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
{Continued)

When grant terms provide that the expenditure of resources is the prime factor for determining

eligibility for Federal, State, and other grant resources, revenue is recognized at the time the

expenditure is made. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under

accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to

compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period
are all considered to be susceptible to accruai and so have been recognized as revenues of
the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the
current fiscal pericd is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current pericd.
All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is
received by the government.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:
The general fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another

fund.

The capital projects fund accounts for rescurces accumulated and payments made for the
acquisition of land and construction of major capital facilities.

The transportation impact fee special revenue fund is used to track impact fees collected
for the purpose of funding capital expenditures for the expansion of road capacity.

The streets improvement special revenue fund is used to account for the revenue from a
half-cent local government infrastructure surtax and a {ocal option gas tax that is being
used for road maintenance and improevements as well as to resurface city streets.

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:
The utility enterprise fund accounts for revenues and expenditures related to activities in
the government's distribution of water, pumping of sewage, collection of sewage and
treatment of sewage.

The solid waste enterprise fund accounts for revenues and expenditures related to the
collection and removal of sclid waste.

The stormwater enterprise fund accounts for revenues and expenditures related to the
collecticn and management of stormwater throughout the city.
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CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
{Continued)
Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

Internal service fund accounts for fleet management services provided to other
departments or agencies of the government, or to other governments, on a cost
reimbursement basis.

The pension trust fund accounts for the activities of the Volunteer Firefighters' Pension,
which accumulates resources for pension benefit payments to qualified volunteer
firefighters.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financiai
statements to the extent that those standards do neot conflict with or contradict guidance of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following
subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds,
subject to the same limitation. The government has elected not to follow subsequent private-
sector guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to the general rule are payments-inlieu of taxes and other
charges between the government’s water, sewer, and stormwater functions and various other
functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues included 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3} capital
grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internaily dedicated resources are
repcrted as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing activities. The
principal operating revenues c¢f the City's enterprise funds and the internal service fund are
charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the enterprise funds and
the internal service fund includes the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

41



CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s

policy to use restricted rescurces first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Deposits and Investments

The City's cash and cash equivalents is cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of the acquisition.
Investments are reported at fair value.

Receivables and payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements cutstanding
at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds"” (i.e., the current
perticn of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of
interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from
other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between governmental activities and
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal
balances.”

Receivabies consist primarily of amounts due from other governments. as well as utility, solid
waste, and stormwater billings. All General Fund receivables are deemed coilectible, and an
allowance for doubtful accounts has been set up in the Utility, Solid Waste, and Stormwater
Funds for 17%, 18% and 22%, respectively, of the outstanding receivable amounts. Under
Fiorida law. the assessment and collection of all county, municipal, and school district property
taxes are consolidated in the offices of the County Property Appraiser and County Tax
Collector. The laws of the state regulating tax assessment are also designed to assure a
consistent property valuation method statewide. State Statutes permit municipalities to levy
property taxes at a rate up to 10 mills.
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CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Receivables and payables (Continued)

The property tax calendar is as follows:

Valuation Date

Property Appraiser prepares the assessment roll with values as
of January 1, 2005, submits this preliminary roll for approval by
the State and notifies each taxing authority of their respective
valuations.

City Council holds two required public hearings and adopts a
budget and ad valorem tax millage rate for the coming fiscal
year.

Property Appraiser certifies the assessment roll and all real and
tangible personal property taxes are due and payable {(Levy
date).

A Notice of Taxes is maiied to each property owner on the
assessment roll. Taxes are paid November 2005 through March
2008, with the following applicable discounts:

Month Paid Discount
November 4%
December 3
January 2
February 1
March 0

All unpaid taxes on real and tangible personal property become
delinquent.

A list of unpaid tangikle personal property taxes and a list of
unpaid reat property taxes are advenrised.

Tax certificates are sold ¢on all real estate parcels with unpaid
real property taxes (Lien date).

A court order is obtained authorizing the sejizure and sale of

personal propenrty if the taxpayer fails to pay the delinquent
personal property taxes.

43

January 1, 2006

July 1, 2005

September 2005

November 1, 2005

November 1, 2005
through
March 31, 2006

April 1, 2006

April and May 2006

June 1, 2008

June 1, 2006



CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

inventories

inventories are valued at cost using the first-inffirst-cut (FIFO} method for the fieet management
fund and the utility fund. inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. The
cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time inventory is used. No required minimum levels
of inventory are maintained.

Prepaid items
Certain payments t¢ vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial staterments.

Capital Assels

Capital assets are defined by the City as property and equipment with an initial, individual cost
of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased ¢r constructed. Contributed
assets are recorded at fair market value as of the date received. Additions, improvements and
other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other
costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Cepreciation on assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful

lives:
Years
Buildings 20-40
Improvements other than buildings 7-30
Infrastructure 15 - 100
Equipment 5-20

interfund Transactions

Interfund transactions reflect as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers.
Loans are reported as receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination
upon consolidation. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate
benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement.  All other interfund
transactions are treated as transfers.
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CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Compensated Absences

Employees may accumulate vacation and sick leave with certain limitations as to the
number of hours of accumulation. Employees are paid 100% of their accumulated vacation
pay and sick leave when they terminate up tc a maximum of 320 hours for vacation and 320
hours for sick leave, as long as they are not dismissed with cause or fail to meet the 10 day
notice requirement for voluntary resignations.

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations
are reported as liabilities. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over
the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bond and loan issuance costs are
reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

Fund Equity

in the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties
for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative
management plans that are subject to change.

Note 2 — Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and
the government-wide statement of net assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciiiation between fund balance — fotal
governmental funds and net assets — governmental activities as reported in the government-
wide statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that “capital assets
used in governmenta! activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are deferred in the
funds.” The details of this $198,413,136 difference are as follows:

Capital assets § 203,385,579
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (11,974,273
Construction in progress 5,021,830

Net adjustment to increase fund balance - fotal governmental funds to arrive
at nef assets - governmental activities S 186.413.136
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CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Note 2 -~ Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
A second element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities, including bonds

payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the
funds.” The details of this $1,184,114 difference are as follows:

Loans payable $ 167.812
Capital leases payable 3.944
Compensated absences 1.012.358

Net adiustment to increase fund balance - fotal governmental funds to arrive
at net assels - governmental activities % 1184114

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide
statement of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds
and changes in net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
statement of activities. One element of that reconciliation states that “the issuance of long-
term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment
of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, the governmenta!
funds report the effect of issuance costs when debt is first issued, whereas amounts are
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.” The details of this $55,158 difference
are as follows:

Debt repayments:
Loan 32.06%

Capital lease 23088

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances - fotal governmental
funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental activities s 55,158
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CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Note 3 - Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

Compliance with Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provision
The City has ne material violations of finance-related legal and contractual provisions.

Deficit Fund Balance

The SR100 Community Redevelopment Fund had a deficit fund balance of $988,039 as of
September 30, 2006. This fund incurred redevelopment expenditures in advance of future
anticipated property tax revenues.

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations
For the year ended September 30, 20086, nc departments exceeded appropriations.

Budgetary Information
The City follows these procedures in adopting the budget:

1.

On or before the 30" day of September of each year, the City Council by
resolution adopts an annual budget for all funds, after public hearings are
conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

If, during the fiscal year, revenues in excess of those estimated in the budget are
available for appropriation, the Council may, by resclution, make supplementai
appropriations for the year in an amount not to exceed such excess.

The City cannot legally exceed the budget, however, the City Manager is
authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within a department. Any revisions that
change the total expenditures of any department must be approved by the City
Council. The legal level of budgetary control is the department level.

Budgeted amounts presented in the accompanying financial statements have
been adjusted for legally authorized revisions of the annual budget during the
year. Encumbrance accounting is employed. Unexpended and unencumbered
appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year and may be reappropriated in
the ensuing year.

The budget includes a pertion of the prior year's fund balance represented by
unappropriated liquid assets remaining in the fund as a budgeted revenue in the
succeeding year. The results of operations on a GAAP basis do not recognize
the fund balance allocation as revenue as it represents prior periods' excess of
revenues over expenditures.
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CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Note 4 - Deposits and Investments

Deposits

At year-end, the carrying amount of the City's deposits was $9,064,571 and the bank balance
was $9,929.466. All bank depcsits were fully covered by federal depository insurance and by
deposits held in banks that are members of the State of Florida's Collateral Pool as specified
under Florida law. Florida Statutes provide for collateral pooling by banks and savings and
loans. This limits local government deposits to "authorized depositories”.  Included in the
carrying amount of the City deposits is $10,776 in petty cash. In addition, the City has a money
market cash balance of $158,607 in its investment account.

investmentis
The City follows guidelines of Florida Statute Section 218.415, which allows the foilowing
investments:

1. The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund

2. SEC registered money market funds with the highest credit guality rating from a
nattonally recognized rating agency.
Interest bearing time deposits or savings accounts in qualified public depositories.
Direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury.
Federal Agencies and instrumentalities.
Commercial paper
Corporate bonds

SO W

As of September 30, 20086, the City has the foliowing investments:

Percentage
Investment Type Fair Value of Total Maturities
Florida SBA Investment Pool S 38,158,101 52.18% nia
U.S. Government Agencies 14.052,480 19.22% 1-3 Years
Commercial Paper 10,440,908 14.28% 90-180 Days
U.S. Treasuries 8,028,278 10.98% 1-2 Years
Corporate Notes 2.441.827 3.34% 1-3 Years

3 73,121,404

The SBA has taken the position that participants in the pool are not required to disclose
information related to interest rate risk, custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk, and
foreign credit risk. The investment pool was not rated by a nationally recognized statistical
rating agency as of September 30, 2006.

interest Rate Risk. The City's investment poiicy limits the maturities of cperating funds to a

maximum cof twenty-four (24) months. Bond reserves, construction funds, and other non-
operating funds cannot exceed maturities of ten {10) years. Longer maturities, not to
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CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Note 4 — Deposits and Investments (Continued)

exceed thirty (30) years, may be used in special circumstances. The maximum length to
maturity for an investment in any U.S. Government Agency security is ten (10) years from the
date of purchase.

Credit Risk. As of September 30, 2008, the City's investments in US. Government
Agencies were rated AAA, commercial paper rated A-1+, and corporate bonds rated AA- 1o
AAA by Standard & Poor's.

Concentrations of Credit Risk. The City’s investment policy allows a maximum of seventy-
five (75) percent of available funds to be invested in U.S. Government Agencies. As of
September 30, 2008, the City's largest agency investment is in the Federal Home Loan
Bank. These securities represent 6. 9 percent of the City’'s total investments.

The Volunteer Firefighters' Pension monies totaling $305,308 are invested in a bank money
market account and the Florida SBA investment pool.

Cash with fiscal agent as of September 30, 2006 totaled $4,0829836. This amount
represents the semi-annual utility bond principal and interest payments on deposit with the
distributing agent.

Note § — Receivables

Receivables consist of the following at September 30, 2006:

Transpcalern Sg 2 Ziorm Fieat
Ganera :Tpac! Tze bty oaste Wy atar Maragersnt
cund F.na F.ng =.ng Fung F."a
ACCOLNE RIS vk 5 285330 & 447k 0§ 4 575 5%2 % G2 EET & Bg1 Tal % J3 543 3
z 33 375 -
134 427

(B33 8. 1154 336 CG3 BET - Lt Gt B24
5 458 222 % 4478 E q414* 257 & FSY A% 0§ G348 043 % 23545 3 £ 532 5

Notes receivable, both current and noncurrent, is a loan to Flamingo Development of Flagler,
Inc. The City received a Community Development Block Grant loan for the same amount. The
amount owed by the City is included in long-term debt.
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CITY OF PALM CCAST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006
Note 6 — Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2006 was as follows:

Balance Balance
J89/30:05 Increases Decreases £a:30/06
A Governmentaj Activities
Capital assets. not being depreciated:
Land § 878721 8§ 1871023 8 - S 6%.808.144
Construction in progress 3635814 1,586 1568 {200,140 5021830
Totai capital assets. not being depreciated 71472.935 3.557.17% (200.140) T4 825974
Capital assets. being depreciated
Bulldings and impravements other than builgings 10.011.273 4.410.819 - 14.422.092
Infrastructure 107.548.703 6.868.825 - 114,415,528
Equipment 8,175 804 2.250.567 (33.213) 10.393 248
Total capital assets. being depraciated 125733870 13.530.211 (33.213) 139.230.868
Less accurnu ated depreciated for:
Buildings and improvements ather than buildings (500.688) {431,115 - (931.803)
Infrastructure (6.511.185) {2.717.415) - (9.228.604)
Equipment (2.016.525) {1.359.850} 19.260 {3.357.115)
Tota! accumulated depreciation {9,028.398) 4508 384) 19.260 {13.5°7.523)
Totat capital assets. heing depreciated. net 116.705.472 9.021.827 (13.953) 125,713,346
Governmental activities capital assets. net & 188178407 5 12579006 & (214.093) $ 200.543.320
Balance Balance
0%:30/05 increases Decreases 0&/38/08
B. Business-type Activities
Capital assets, not bewng depreciated:
Lang 8 12295100 S 733457 8 - 8§ 13.032.557
Constructon in progress 18.0B8 189 1,202160 {12.159.215) 7.091.134
Total capital assets not being oepreciated 30.387.289 1.935617 {12.199.215) 201236
Capital assets. being depraciaieg
Buildings and improvements other than buildings 32 847 425 17.205.042 - E.052 487
Infrastructare 51.028.872 18.122.064 - 69.150.936
Equipmenrt 450 442 394,761 - B85 203
Total capital assets. being depreciated 84 366.739 35721 867 - 120 088 608
Less accurmuiated depreciated for:
Buildings and improvements other than puildings (2 BE1.638) (1.599 256) - {4.350.891)
Infrastruciure (2.777.389) [2.065.865) - {4843 254;
Equipment (53,890 {77.746) - (13T E3M
Total accumulated depreciation 15.492 917} (3.842 867 - (5.335.784)
Total capital assets. being depreciated. net 78.873.822 31.87%.000 - 110.752.822
Business-type activities capital assets. net $ 108261111 § 33814617 § (12195215 $§ 130876.513
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CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED

SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Note 6 — Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions/programs as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government 478175
Public safety 117.695
Transportation and Physical Environment 2,881 924
Culture and recreation 310,551
Capital assets held by the government's internal service funds are
charged to the various functions based on their usage of the assets 740.039
Total depreciation expense - governmeantai activities & 4508384
Business activities:
Utility $ 3781087
Solid Waste -
Stormwater 61.780
Total depreciation expense - business activities $ 3842867
Note 7 - Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers
The composition of interfund balances as of September 30, 2008, is as follows:
Advances from/to other funds
Receivable Fund Payable Fund Purpose Amoaunt
Capital Projects Fund Fleet Management Fund FPurchase of Fleet equipment 170 339
General Fund SR100 CRA Fund Purchase and redevelopment of land 1,500,000
Utility Fund Salid Waste Fund Supplement operating cash flow B30 040
Utility Fund Stormwater Fund Supplement operating ¢ash flow 117.807
Toral 2818.336
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CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Note 7 — Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers (Continued)

Transfers from the General Fund are generally made to establish reserves for future capital

expenditures and possible emergency related expenditures. Transfers from the Utility Fund

are in lieu of tax transfers, maintenance transfers, and to establish reserves for future capital
expenditures.

Transfer In:
Transfer out: General Capital Nonmajor Utility Internal
Fund Projects  Governmental Fund Senice Total
General Fund g - $ 15206 $ 98162 § 236,732 $1,323482 3 16738682
Utility Fund 668,735 37.000 - - 475,071 1,180.806
Stormwater Fund - - - - 12,687 12,687

Total fransfers out $ 668735 § 52296 $ 98162 $ 236732 §$1811250 $2867175

Note 8 — Leases and Agreements
Interlocal Agreements;
The City maintains an interlocal agreement with the Flagler County Sheriff for law
enforcement services. The agreement provides for additional services above the base level
of service provided by the Sheriff on a County-wide basis. For 2006 the total cost was
31,764 889 and provided 21.5 additional personnel.

Operating Leases:

Total rental expense from operating leases in the varicus funds is as follows:

General Fund 3 17,222
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CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Note 8 — Leases and Agreements (Continued)

Capital Leases:

The City has entered into a lease agreement for financing the acquisition of computer
equipment. This lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes and
therefore has been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as
of the date on inception. Assets recorded under capital lease and the accumulated
amortization is as follows:

Computer eguipment 3 212,322
Less: Accumulated amortizaticn (169.842)
$ 42 480

Amortizat:on of equipment leased under capital lease is included in the general government
function.

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments under capital lease,
together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of September 30:

Year Ending September 30

2007 o) 4.065
Total minimum lease payments 4,065
Less amount representing interest {121}
Present value of minimum lease payments 5 3,044

The current obligation under capital lease is $3,944.
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CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Note 9 — Long-Term Debt
A. Governmental Activities

CDBG Loan

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000, the City of Palm Coast entered into an
agreement with Florida Department of Community Affairs (DCA). DCA agreed to lend
3324,953 to the City who then entered into an agreement to lend the same amount to a private
company who agreed 1o construct and operate a day care center.

This toan is payable to DCA at $3,290 per month at 4% interest through May 14, 2011. The
same terms apply tc the note receivable from the day care center.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the loan are as follows:

Year Ending

September 30 Principal Interest
2007 8 33375 3 6,105
2008 34,735 4,745
2009 36,150 3,542
2010 37,623 1.857
2011 25,830 380

$ 167,812 3§ 16.638

Equipment Loans

During the fiscal year ended September 30. 2004, the City of Palm Coast entered into a loan
agreement for the purchase of eguipment. The loan principal of $156,230 is payable at 34,593
per month at 2.94% interest through June 8, 2007

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the loan are as follows:

Year Ending
September 30 Principal interest
2007 ) 38851 & a57

S 38,851 % 457
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CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Note 9 — Long-Term Debt (Continued)

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008, the City of Palm Coast entered intc a loan
agreement for the purchase of equipment. The loan principal of $302,752 is payable at
$12,815 per menth at 0% interest through December 22, 2007.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the loan are as follows:

Year Ending

September 30 Principal Interest
2007 3 151,375 -
2008 37,848 -

$ 189,221 & -

B. Business Activities
Utility

Utility System Revenue Bonds

On October 30, 2003 the City issued debt and closed on the purchase of the water and
wastewater utility that serves the City of Paim Coast and some surrounding areas. The
purchase price was $82,774 934. Another $10,690,000 was borrowed to complete some
capital projects that were in process or needed in the near future and to fund a renewal and
replacement reserve. Acquisition and closing costs included in the bond issue brought the total
debt issued to $96,650,000. This debt will be paid over 30 years from water and wastewater
revenues.

Disposition of Revenue in order of Priority
Deposits are made in the Utility Fund for payment of operation and maintenance costs,

Funds are transferred to Debt Service Reserve for the following purposes:

interest Payments

Parity Contract Obligations Payments
Principal Payments

Redemption of Term Bonds
Subcerdinated Debt Payments

A reserve fund is not required since the City has acquired municipal bond insurance, which

unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees that the full and complete payment will be made
by or on behalf of the City to the Paying Agent or its successor.
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CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Note 9 — Long-Term Debt {Continued)

Deposits are made into the Utility Capital Projects Fund for renewal, replacement and
improvement, in an amount at least equal to one-twelfth of 5% of gross revenues received
during the immediately preceding Fiscal Year.

Any remaining revenues are surplus and may be used for any iawful purpose of the City.
Early Redemption

A. Optional Redemption

The series 2003 bonds maturing on or after October 1, 2014 are redeemable prior to their
stated dates of maturity, at the option of the City, in whole or in part on any date on or after
October 1, 2013, at the redemption prices equal to the principal amount of the Series 2003
Bonds to be redeemed plus interest accrued to the date of redemption.

Debt Service
Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the bonds are as foliows:

Year Ending
September 30 Principal Interest
2007 $ 1.880,000 $ 4,368,273
2008 1,920,000 4,329,873
2009 1,955,000 4.284 808
2010 2,000,000 4.230.808
2011 2.055,000 4,167,203
2012-20186 11.405,000 19,659,883
2017-2021 14,375,000 16,310,313
2022-2026 18,505,000 11.988,313
2027-2031 23,580,000 6.690,375
2032-2033 17,120,000 884.000
94,805,000 % 76,824,049
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CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Note 9 — Long-Term Debt {Continued)

State Revolving Fund Loans

During year ended September 30, 2005, the City executed an agreement with the Florida
Department of Environmental Protection to borrow through the State Revolving Fund ioan
program, for the purpose of lift station and force main improvements. The original loan
principal of $2,782,157 is payable semi-annually in the amount of $89.441 at an interest rate
2.71% through December 15, 2025.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the loan are as follows:

Year Ending

September 30 Principal Interest
2007 3 105,588 3 73,284
2008 110,860 70,386
2009 113,988 67.358
2010 117,098 64,248
2011 120,292 61,054
2012-2016 652,520 254,210
2017-202° 746,527 160.203
2022-2026 763,430 526286

$ 2730413 8 803,369

During year ended September 30, 2005, the City executed an agreement with the Florida
Department of Environmental Protection to borrow through the State Revolving Fund ioan
program, for the purpose of wastewater treatment facilities improvements. The loan principal of
$13,344,081 is payable semi-annually in the amount of $428 938 at an interest rate 2.60%
through June 15, 2026

Annuai debt service requirements 1o maturity for the loan are as follows:

Year Ending

September 30 Principal Interest
2007 3 516,264 § 343,612
2008 529,774 330,102
2009 543.638 316,238
2010 557,864 302,012
2011 572,483 287 413
2012-201¢6 3,095,022 1,204,358
2017-2021 3,521,748 777632
2022-2027 4,007 308 252,072

S 13.344.081 & 3.853.439
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CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Note 9 — Long-Term Debt (Continued)

During the year ended September 30, 20086, the City executed an agreement with the Florida
Department of Environmental Protection to borrow up to $4,285200 through the State
Revolving Fund loan program, for the purpose of stormwater drainage improvements and
swale rehabilitation. As of September 30, 2006 the total amount of funding received on this
loan was $2,504,718. The total expended on this project, including capitalized interest, was
$2,769.785 with $256,218 in funding pending as of year end. Estimated repayment dates are
subject to change pending the completion of the project.

interest Disbursable Amount Estimated Semi-Annual  Term
Description Rate Amount Funded Repayment Payment (Years)
Stormwater system improvements 255% 3 4285200 § 2504719 2/13/2007 & 137,748 20

Changes in long-term debt

During the year ended September 30, 2008, the following changes in long-term debt occurred:

Governmental Activities: Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
CDBG Loan % 199,880 $ - 3 ({32,068} 3 167.812 % 33.375
Capital leases 27,033 - {23.089) 3,044 3.944
Equipment Loan 82,801 302,752 (167.481) 228,072 190,226
Compensated Absences 753,918 734.265 (462.367)  1,025.816 516.759
Leng-term debt 5 1,073,632 $ 1037017 $ (6B5005) $ 1425644 § 744344
Business Type Activities:
Utility Revenue Bond 5 96,650,000 $ - S (1.845000y $ 94,805,000 S 1.880.000
State Revolving Fund Loans 8.415,152 10,480.871 {51.744) 18,844.279 788,888
Compensated Absences 292.241 384,082 {228.849) 447 654 174.781
Long-term debt S 105357393 3 10,864,933 § {2,125383) § 114096.833 $ 2843669

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds.

Accordingly, long-term

liabilities for them are inciuded as part of the above totals for governmental activities. At yvear
end, an equipment loan of $228,072 and $13,458 cof internal service fund compensated
absences are included in the above amounts. For governmental activities, compensated
absences are generally liquidated by the general fund.
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CITY OF PALM COAST, FL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Note 10 — Retirement Plans

Defined Contribution Plan

The City maintains a single employer defined contribution plan.  All full-time employees are
eligible to participate. The name of the plan is the City of Palm Coast 401(a) Pension Plan.
The plan is administered by a third party administrator, Great West Retirement Services. The
authority to establish and amend benefits rests with the City Council. Under this plan, the City
contributes a certain percentage of employees' eligible wages based upon their job
classification as determined by City Council. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008,
general employees received a 9% contribution, with department heads receiving 12% and
special risk employees receiving 15%. Employees do not participate in the plan funding.
Pension contributions are subject to a five year (8) vesting schedule. Withdrawals from the
plan may be made due to retirement, attainment of age 59 4 separation from service,
disability, or death. For the period ended September 30, 2006, contributions to this plan totaled
$1.114,882.

Florida Retirement System

Former Flagler County and Palm Coast Service District employees hired as transfers during
the 1999-2000 or 2000-2001 fiscal years have a one-time option to remain a member of the
Florida State Retirement System (FRS). No employees for FYE 1999-2000 elected to be part
of FRS. However, during 2001 there were former Palm Coast Service District employees hired
who did elect to remain in FRS.

The Retirement System is a cost sharing multiple employer public employee retirement system
administered by the State of Flonda Department of Management Services, Division of
Retirement, to provide retirement and survivor benefits to participating public employees.
Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, establishes the authority for participant eligibility, contribution
requirements, vesting eligibility and benefit provisicns.

The System provides vesting of benefits after six (6) years of creditable service. Members
are eligible for normal retirement after 6 years of service and attaining age 62, or 30 years of
service regardless of age. Early retirement may be taken any time after completing 10 years
of service; however, there is a five percent reduction in benefits for each year prior to normat
retirement. Generally, membership is compulsory for all full-time and part-time employees.
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CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Note 10 — Retirement Plans {Continued)
Florida Retirement System (Continued)

There is nc requirement for employees to contribute to the System; the employer pays all
contributions.

The statutory contribution rates as a percent of earnings were as follows:

10/1/2005 -
08/30/2008
Regular employees — members not qualifying for other
classes 9.85%
Special Risk Employees — members employed as law
enforcement officers and firefighters 20.92%
Health Insurance Subsidy included in the above rates 1.11%

Contributions required and made to the System for City employees were as follows:

Reguired %
Fiscal Year Ending Contribution Contributed
09/30/2004 $177.984 100%
09/30/2005 203,845 100%
08/30/20086 232,212 100%

For a stand-alone report of the Florida Retirement System, refer to the State of Florida
Comprehensive Annual Financial Repert or various publications available from the Florida
Department of Management Services.

During the fiscal year, the System held no securities issued by the employer.

Volunteer Firefighters’ Pension Plan
On July 2, 2002, the City of Palm Coast established a volunteer firefighters' pension plan
pursuant to Florida Statute, Chapter 175 The volunteer positions are unpaid and therefore
there is no benefit provided under Chapter 175. On February 15, 2005, the City adopted a
“local law™ plan that will provide benefits based on years of service. The plan is a single-
employer defined benefit pension plan.

The City of Palm Coast Volunteer Retirement Trust Fund is administered by a Board of

Trustees. The Beard has administrative authority over the Fund, and acts as supervisoer and
plan administrator.

680



CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Volunteer Firefighters’ Pension Plan (Continued)

Volunteer firefighters who meet minimum City-established standards are eligible to
participate in the plan. Minimum standards are based on a system that awards points used
to cerify years of credited service for completing training courses, attending drills,
responding to emergency and non-emergency calls, and participating in other fire
emergency related activities. The minimum number of years of active service shall be five
years to qualify for retirement. Members with up to five years of consecutive service to the
City prior to July, 2002 shall be eligible for up to five years credit providing such members
satisfy pension requirements in at least one of the two years following July, 2002. The
minimum age for receiving benefits shall be 52 with twenty-five years of service, or 55 and
after ten years of service, or for volunteers 62 and over, five years of service. Early
retirement may be arranged with consent of the Board for a member who has attained age
50 with ten years of continucus service. The retirement benefit shall be actuarially reduced
by three percent for each year by which the member's age at retirement precedes the
member’s normal retirement age. Each member shall become one hundred percent vested
at normal retirement age, subject only to the actuarial reducticn for early retirement at age
fifty {50).

The authority to establish and amend benefits rests with the City Council. City contribution
requirements to the plan are adopted as part of the City's annual budget. The current
retirement benefit is based on $35 per month for each year of credited service. Volunteers
do not contribute to the plan.

Contributions frem the state to the plan are reported as revenues and expenditures in the
general fund before being reported in the pension fund. The amount recorded for the pericd
ended September 30, 2006 was $182,845. A separate, audited GAAP-basis pension plan
repert is not available for the plan. Currently, cne member has begun receiving retirement
benefits. There are 35 active participants, with seven being eligible for normal retirement.
An actuarial valuation, utilizing the aggregate cost method, has been completed as of
Cctober 1, 2005.

Three Year Trend information

Actuarially Percentage Net
Year Ended Required State of APC Pension
September 30 Contribution Contribution Contributed Obligation
2005 03 86,664 100% 0
2004 0 22.312 100% 0
2003 0 0 100% 0
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CITY OF PALM COAST, FL
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Note 11 — Restatement of Fund Balances

For the year ended September 30, 2008, the City reclassified certain special revenue funds to
the general fund, capital projects fund, and transportation impact fee special revenue fund
based on their actual function. The following batances were restated:

Restated
8/30/2005 9/30/2005
Fund Balance Balance Change Balance
General Fund $10,612.139 $1.016.865 $11.628.004
Carital Projects Fund 3408102 130,031 3,538,133
Special Revenue
Transportation Impact Fee 10.347.953 628,141 10,976,094
Disaster Reserve 1,016,865 {1.016,865) -
Development Special Projects 628,141 (628.141) -
Recycling Revenue 130,031 (130.031) -
Totals $26.143,231 - 526.143.231

Note 12 — Prepaid Water and Sewer Impact Fees

The original developers of the City of Palm Coast collected impact fees to establish utility
infrastructure. These amounts are considered a prepayment of current impact fees and are
subtracted from the total impact fees due when a building lot is developed. As of September
30, 2006, the amount of prepaid impact fees is estimated to be $24,385,000.

Note 13 — Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to terts; theft of, damage to and destruction
of assets: errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City carries commercial
insurance. There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous
year. There have been no settlements in excess of insurance coverage in any of the prior
three fiscal years.
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Note 14 - Community Redevelopment Area

The City has established the SR100 Community Redevelopment special revenue fund to
account for revenues and expenditures related to the SR100 community redevelopment area.
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008, the fund received $207 687 in grant revenue,
$150.646 in property tax revenue, and $35,125 in investment earnings. In addition, the fund
received a $1,000,000 working capital ioan from the General Fund. Expenditures for the fiscal
year of $1,279,008 are for the purchase of land and related redevelopment costs.

Note 15 — Developer Contribution

A contribution of $7,271,000 was received from a developer and recorded in the Transportation
Impact Fee special revenue fund during fiscal year 2006. This one time contribution is required
as part of the Palm Coast Park Develcpment of Regional Impact development order dated
December 7, 2004. This contribution is in addition to normal transportation impact fees, and is
for the mitigation of the traffic impact on specific existing roadways due to this development.

Note 16 — Subsequent Events

In January 2007, the city will issue $50,765,000 of utility revenue bonds to finance the
construction of a new water treatment plant and related infrastructure. The interest rate on the
bonds will range from 4.2 — 5.0 percent and the maturity date is January 2036.
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City of Palm Coast, Florida
Required Supplementary Information

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2008

REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Generai government:
Mayor anc Council
City Manager
City Atterney
City Clerk
General Services
Building & Code Administration
Developrment Services
Nendeparmenta:
Total general government
Public safety
Fire
Law Enforcement
Total public safety
Transportation and physical environment
Public Works
Engineering
Capital Projects
Total transportation and physical environment
Culture and recreation
Total expendituras

Excess of revenJes over {under) expenditures

Other financing sources (usesi:
Transfers in
Transfers out

Totai other financing sources (uses}

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning - restated
Fund balance - ending

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative]
$ 11.978.000 $ 12163000 & 12985761 § 820.781
4513400 4.513.400 6.181 259 1.847.859
3.406.900 3.406.900 3.889.086 482.186
3889221 3,989,221 3883515 {105,706}
180.400 755.400 824 689 £9.299
127.900 127,900 787.704 659.804
2100 2.100 34 831 327N
24195 921 24.583.921 28.570.855 3.606.934
57.398 60,398 80183 215
1.098.088 1.058,089 1.009.776 88 313
400,000 840,000 832,088 7 502
259.303 258,303 251.580 7.313
3.412.391 3,457,391 3,340.545 116.848
3,799.258 4.374,258 3.736.254 638.004
1.521.153 1521153 1.048 707 472 448
1.252 388 7684.388 404.649 358 738
11.799.980 12.174.980 10.484.202 1690778
4.131.474 4524474 4,508,853 14.621
1.805 500 1.9085,500 1.7682.811 142.669
£.036 974 5 429,974 6.272 684 157.280
6.797.959 6.797.955 4.887.683 1,910,266
548.971 £48.671 342.392 208,579
703.141 703,141 545685 157.446
£.050,071 8.050,.071 5775.780 227429
2.202.074 2.202.074 1,986.386 215.678
28.089.099 28.857.099 24.518.082 4,338 037
(3.893.178} (3,893 178) 4.051.783 7.944 671
859165 559,165 868.735 9.570
(2.225,334} (2.225.334) {1.6873.682) 551.652
(1.568.169) {1.566.169) {1.004.947] 561.222
[5459.347) {5.455.347; 3.046 846 B 506.183
11.623.004 11.6828.004 11.829.004 -
§ B189B57 $ 6.160.657 S 14675850 § 8.506.193
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City of Palm Coast, Florida
Required Supplementary Information
Transportation Impact Fee Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2006

REVENUES

Impact fees

Developer Contributions
Intergovernmental revenue
Investment earnings

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Transportation and physical environment
Capital cutlay:

Transportation and physical environment
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues gver (under) expenditures

Fund balance - beginning - restated
Fund balance - ending

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts {Negative)
$ 10653280 §$ 10.653.280 $ 8255857 3 (2.397 823}
- - 7.271.000 7.271 000
- - 25658 25658
136,500 136.800 750.355 £13.455
10.790.180 10.780.180 16,302,670 5.512.480
126.546 126,548 124.338 2,208
21.513.034 21513034 4251781 17.261 273
21.638.580 21.638.580 4.378.0585 17.263.481
{10.849.400;  (10.849.400) 11.826.571 22775971
10.676.094 10.976.094 10.876.054 -
3 126654 § 126684 3% 22902665 § 22.775.971
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City of Palm Coast, Florida
Required Supplementary Information
Streets Improvement Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2006

REVENUES

Taxes

Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay:

Transpoertaticn and physicat environment
Totai expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under} expenditures

Fund balance - beginning
Funa kalance - ending

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Qriginal Final Actual Amounts {Negative)
$ 3731000 § 3.731.000 § 4,297 798 566798
1,400 1400 87178 B5.778
3.732.400 3.732.400 4.384 976 852.576
5,85%.200 5.859,200 3.9465.811 1.812 388
5.856 200 5 859,200 3945 811 1812 380
2.126.800) {2.126,800% 438165 2 564 985
2126819 2126819 2126819 -
S 19 & 19 § 2564084 § 2 564 965
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CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles
for the general fund and the transporiation impact fee special revenue fund. Encumbrance
accounting is employed. Unexpended and unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end of
the fiscal year and may be reappropnated in the ensuing year.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to
expenditure for particular purposes.

Police Education Fund - This fund is used to account for the costs of educational expenses for
police officers. Revenues come from fines and forfeitures.

Police Automation Fund - This fund is used to account for funds collected and dishursements
made for the purpose of acquisition of equipment to upgrade the technology of existing police
equipment.

Park Impact Fee Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected from new development, for
the purpose of funding capttal cost related to park land acquisition and improvements, and to track
the expenditures of the money.

Fire Impact Fee Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected from new development, for
the purpose of funding capital cost related to expanding fire services, and to track the expenditures
of the money.

SR100 Community Redevelopment Fund - This fund is used to account revenues and
expenditures related to redeveiopment.
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City of Palm Coast, Florida
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
September 30, 2006

Special Revenue Funds

Totai
Monmajor
Police Police Park Fire SR100 Governmental
Education Automation Impact Fee Impact Fee CRA Funds
ASSETS
Equity In pocled cash and investments $ 28569 § 72.041 & 5208208 § 3415685 § 525402 S § 249.902
Due from other governmerts - - 20.000 - - 20.008
Prepaig items - - - - 4.800 4 800
Total assets 5 26569 % 72041 3 5228205 S 3415685 & 530202 & 8274702
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable El - ] - 3 96328 3 1052 % 18241 8 115,518
Accrued liablities - - - - - -
Deferred Revenue - - - - - -
Due 1o other funds - - - - 1.500.00C 1.500.000
Tota. ligbilites - - 86 326 1.052 1.518.241 1.615.618
FUND BALANCES
Reserved far encumbrances - - 24528 995.567 40,488 1.060.583
Unreservediundesignatea 28 568 72.041 5107.351 2.419.066 (1.028.527) £.598.500
Total fund balances 28569 72.041 5.131.879 3.414 B33 {988.033) 7.65%.083
Tezal habilties ang fund balanca 3 ZR568 § 72041 % 5228205 % 3415885 3% g30.202 & G.274.702
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City of Palm Coast, Florida

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2008

Special Revenue Funds

Total
Nonmajor
Police Police Park Fire SR100 Governmental

Education Automation Impact Fee Impact Fee CRA Funds
REVENUES
Taxes 5 - 5 - 3 - $ - 88457 % 85 457
Intergovernmental revenue - - - - 207 887 207 BBT
Fines and farfeitures B.BST a5 112 - - - 43 788
Impact fees - - 2.221.598 1028618 - 3.243 214
Investiment earnings 1.078 4956 232,203 127 982 35125 397312
Total revenues 9732 35.068 2 453,801 1.154 568 331.269 3,085 435
EXPENDITURES
Current:

Fublic safety - - - 11 000 - 11.000

Transportation and physicai environment . - - - 131.900 131 900
Capital outlay:

Publlic safety 10.0G0 - - 55 543 - £5.543

Transpertation and physical environment - - - - 1.147.108 1.147 108

Culture and recreation - - 2715114 - - 2.715.114
Total expenditures 10.000 - 27158114 66 543 1.279.008 4.070 665
Excess (deficency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures (267) 36.068 {261,313 1.088.02% {847 739 {B5 228)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in - 35.973 - - 52.18% 98,162
Total other firancing sources (uses) - 35973 - - 652189 98 162
Net change in fund balances (287) 72.541 {261.313) 1.088 025 {885.550; 12.936
Fund balances - beginning 28,836 - 5.383.152 2.325.608 {102.488) 7.6845.147
Funa balances - ending 5 28589 3 72041 § 5131878 § 3414633 {988.039) $ 7.658.083
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City of Palm Coast, Florida

Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended September 30, 2006

REVENUES

Taxes

Imtergovernmenial revenue
Charges for services
Contributions

Investment earnings

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Capital outlay:
General government
Pubiic safety
Transpertation and physical envircnment
Culture and recreation
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over {under) expenditures
Other financing sources fuses):

Transfers in
Totai other financing sources {uses)

Net change n fund balance

Fund balance - beginning - restated
Fund balance - ending

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
QOriginal Final Amounts {Negative)
§ 4266700 $ 4266700 § 4284923 % 28223
- - 400.000 400.000
44900 44 500 69.329 24429
- - 125.000 125,000
47 300 47.300 303.525 256.225
4.358.800 4.358.500 5182.777 833.877
41.000 41.000 38.229 2™
2 116,976 2.116.878 11.799 2105177
511777 511777 10.655 S01.122
3.385,583 3.395.983 1.031.172 2.364.811
2.042 486 2.042.486 221425 1.821.061
8.108.222 8.108.222 1.313.280 €.794 942
(3.749.322) {3.749.322} 3,875.497 7.628.819
211,222 211.222 52.296 {158.926}
211,222 211,222 52 296 {158.928)
{3.538.100) (3 538.100) 35631,793 7.489.893
3.538.133 3.538.133 3.5638.133 -
g 33 8 33 5 7469926 S 7.460.893
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City of Palm Coast, Florida
Police Education Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Finat Budget -
Positive
Qriginal Final Actual Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES
Fines and forfetures S 5800 §% 5800 % 8657 3 2.857
investment earn ngs 100 100 1.076 978
Total revenues 5.800 5.900 8.733 3.833
EXPENDITURES
Current;

Puhblic safety 34.700 34.700 10.000 24 700
Total expenditures 34.700 34 700 10.000 24 700
Excess of reverues over (Ungeri expenditures {28.8001 {28 800) (267 28.533
Fund balance - beginning 28,838 28.836 28.835 -
Fund balance - ending 3 36 3 E 28563 % 28.533
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City of Palm Coast, Florida
Police Automation Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2008

REVENUES

Fines and forfeitures
Investment earnings
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public safety
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses).

Transfers in
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change ir fund balance

Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts {Negative)
S 26400 3 268400 3 35112 8712
300 300 G956 656
26,700 26.700 36.068 9.368
26.700 28,700 - 28.700
26.700 26,700 - 26.700
36.068 36.068
- - 35,973 35973
- - 35973 35973
- - 72.041 72.041
s - 5 - $ 72.041 72.041
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City of Palm Coast, Florida

Park Impact Fee Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2006

REVENUES

Impact fees
Investment earnings
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay:

Culture and recreation
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over {under) expenditures

Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
QOriginal Final Actual Amounts {Negative)
$ 3131300 £ 3.131.300 8 2221558 % i809.702;
38.000C 38.000 232 203 194.203
3.169.300 3.169.300 2,453 81 {715.498)
§.562 400 8.562.400 2715114 5.847.288
8.562 400 8,562.400 2715114 5.847.288
{56.363.100) (5.393.100) (261.313) 5131.787
5383162 5.383.162 5393.192 -
5 92 3 82 & 5131879 § 5131.787
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City of Palm Coast, Florida

Fire impact Fee Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2006

REVENUES

Impact fees
Investment earn ngs
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public safety
Capital gutiay
Public safety
Total expenditures

Excess of reven.es over (under) expenditures

Fund palance - beginning
Fund balance - ending

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts {Negative)
¥ 5B1.500 8 581500 3 1.026,616 445118
18 700 18,700 127,852 108252
800 200 £00.200 1,154,568 554 368
- 11.000 {11.000)
2.926.800 2.926.800 55543 2 871 257
2.928.800 2,926.800 £6.543 2.BB0.257
(2.3268.800) {2.326.600} 1.088.025 3.414.625
2.326.608 2.328.508 2.326.608 -
3 g & 8 § 3.414 633 3414625
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City of Palm Coast, Florida

Community Redevelopment Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

REVENUES

Taxes

Intergovernmentai revenue
Investment earm ngs

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Physical env.-onment
Capital outlay:

Fhysical env.ronment
Total expenditures

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with

Other financing sources {uses}

Transfers in

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - baginning

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Qriginal Final Actual Amounts {Negative)
L3 99,100 § 99100 & 83457 § (10643}
- - 207 687 207 687
4 800 4 800 35125 30.325
103.900 103.800 331,269 227 368
283,500 263.500 131 800 131 620
1.304.000 1.300.000 1.147 108 152 892
1.563.500 1.563.500 1.279.008 284 492
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures {1.455 800} {1.459 600) (2947.739) 511,851
1.062.189 1.062 189 62 189 {1.000.000)
Tota! other financing sources {Lses) 1.062.188 1.062.18% 62,1859 {1.000.000;
(397 411) {307.411] {885.550) (488.139
{102,489 {102 .489) (102.489) -
S (4999000 & {(485.900) § {988.038) S [488.139;

Fund balance - ending
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Statistical Section

This section of the City of Palm Coast's comprehensive annual financial repert presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the city's
overall financial health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends 83

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the city’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 88

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors
affecting the city’s ability to generate its property taxes.

Debt Capacity 92

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the city's current levels of outstanding debt and the city's
ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 87

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help
the reader understand the envircnment within which the city's financial
activities take place and to help make compariscns over time and with
other governments.

Operating Information 100

These schedules contain information about the city's operations and
resources to help the reader understand how the city's financial information
relates to the services the city provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The city implemented Statement
34 in 2000: schedules presenting government-wide information include information beginning in
that year.
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Schedule 1

City of Palm Coast, Florida
et Assets by Component,
Last Seven Fiscal Years
{accrual basis of accounting)

Zovemrmenta. aclivites
Invested in capital assets net of related geot
Restncted
Unrestricted

Tolal goveTmenta activ bas net assets

Buziness-type achv ies
westec 10 caplal asses. el of relatec debt
Hestricted
wnresingley

Total pasiness-type ackvities nat 45se1s

rimany Coverrnent
Invested in capial assets net of related ceb:
Resincted
Lrrestrnictec

Towl pnmary gave MMEent net assels

Fisca Year

2000 2001 200z 2003 2004 i1; 2005 (% 2006
$282.328 $4 753,508 S167,°92 568 H171.361.402 §.80 740187 £188.058.574 $200.21% 305
147.938 27328 17 538 18,168 £950.159 20.866.845 34114778
- 107 056 7.385 731 13,041,435 14 695 545 g 737 725 135,553 120 2111991
$1637.962 $12.14E 574 $150.251.541 $13€ O78.415 $166, 308 074 5222878 539 £255 545.587
- - $1.7C£ 053 S13.854 635 20030975
- - - 5.288 252 7.73zazz 2 838,888
- - - $1.745 D88 $9.345 745 $22.994. 303
- - - - $10.727.365 $30.524 363 545894 107
$382 928 S4 TRI.B08 S1ET 192 8B4 2171361 402 $152.444 246 §201.813 265 5220342 227
147 438 27338 ‘7535 18.'55 D238 41 28 800 767 36,782 855
1.107 D96 7 386741 13.041 435 ‘4 695845 "3.452 816 23 295 866 44 114.214
5 637.582 $12.°46.574 $1580.251.54" $186 O7E.415 $207 135,473 $253.612.902 $301.240.094

Mota: “he vy of Palm Coast was roorporated an December 31 1995 The aity begar to report accrual ~formaton whern it mplemented

GASE Statement 34 - fiscal year 2000

113 The city purchased the [ogal -water and wastewater Lty oo October 36 2002, and estaonshed a solid waste enerprse fune during 1he fiscal yea

125 The ity and the Palm Coast Jo~—runity Senvige Corporaton (2CCSC: merged dunng the fiscal year and a Stormwaser entesprise furd was crealed

83



Schedule 2

City of Palm Coast, Florida
Changes in Net Assets,

Last Seven Fiscal Years
faccrual basis of accoumting)

Expanses
Governmenta: asiiviues,
General govenrment
Puts safety
Transportation and orysIca. @nvironment
CLlture and rec-eator
Interest on ong-terT debt
Tota governmen:al activiies experses

Business-tyoe activities
Uty
Soag Waste
Stormwater

Total business-ype actvities axpenses

Tota' pnmary Qovertmen: expenses

Program Revenues
Governmearta: aslvites:
Cnarges for sensces
Gergra’ goverrmean
Public safety
Tranmsportation and phys ca envirormen:
C.lture and rec-eaton
Operating grarts and contnbotians
Capital grants and cortributic s
Totai goverimartal activiies program revenues
Business-type actvit es:

Charges for se~vces
Uiy
3o 1 Waste
Starmwater
Ooerating grants and contributicns
Captal grants and scntrisatons
Total business-type activities program "evenyes

Totar proTary governTert prograT révenues

F.sca Year

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 (1 2008 (2) 2008
S840 538 $4.003.411 $4 735135 $6.405.502 £8.388 301 S8 B2 332 55721265
1.148 2 225345 2.391 108 2 837 067 3843368 4 450 045 £ 335 469
- 1617 673 5803810 5.449 00 & 589 055 7.0564 188 8775022
- 442.020 723718 B87.477 1.047 72% * B%E 730 2157 42"
G57 10,206 84 073 29,515 17.983 39017 'S 208
£42 443 8.302.14% 12.937 642 15449781 14 586386 20,0581 370 25557 620
- - - - 15.816,564 18.667.179 22 325065
- - - - © 455,063 3733373 4.359 G44
- - - - - 1,270,085 3680 413
- - - - $17.108 757 23670817 $30 363 422
$642.443 S8 352.148 $12,937 642 515119781 $28 758,143 43751587 SEE 326 642
30,330 51 866 208 23,187 2687 55 157 949 56 GEC B4S $7.723. 865 58 477 215
- 90 248 568640 871075 ‘18088 TOEGA 214074
- 232 634 8255 1692 582 208 3C5 278 540 344 155
- 117.080 74 544 1834 750 120 9G1 18868 244830
650,207 4 BA0 3600 83.102 2,540,442 2 032 933 2480 156
- - 5032608 151 000 4614700 16,870,823 ©3 633 215
G0 537 2310 841 8.447 594 3.500 458 14 860,280 27,361,427 31.284.445
- - - - 16 005,064 21.204 365 25502330
- - - - £ 453510 3887701 4.203 781
- - - - - tBT73.827 3.071 992
- - - - - - 2673225
- - - - 10.011.548 17 760 957 9743608
- - - - 27 467,122 44 206.850 44 GGE 2°5
880,537 52 310 84" $8.447 564 £0 590 458 $42 327 402 37 668277 476 290,660

Note: Tre City of Paiv Coast was rcorporates on Decermber 31, “$99. The oity vegar to repart accrual rformation wher 11 implemented

GASE Staterien:t 34 r fisca. year 2000

e

oy The oy purchased tne laca water and wastewater Wity or. Octoper 30, 2003 and establishen a salic waste enterpnise furg dunng the fiscal year

21 Tne cty and tre Paim Coas: Commun ty Service Corporatar (PCCSC) merged danng the fiscal year ang a Stormwater enerprise furd was created
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Net (Expense)Revenue
Governmental activites
Busiress-Type activ ties

Total pr.mary government net excanse

General Revenues and Othar Changes in Met Assets
Governmental activites:
Taxes
Property taxes
Sales and use taxes
TelecomTuwrization senvices tax
Frarcn.se Fees
‘ntergovernmental reven g
LPTEsTIZIRE INvestmen: gar ngs
Miscelarecus
Gair {Loss; on sale of capital assets
Capitai cortr buticns not restr cted o specific arograms
Transfers

Total governmental activites

Susiness-type activives
Jrresirictec iInvestment earr.ngs
Transfers

Total business-type actvities

Total primary government

Change in Net Assets
Guovernmental activites
3usiness-Type acuvitias
Taotal primary goverrment

Fisca: Year

2000 2001 02 2003 2004 Y 2005 (2; 2006
i$551.904) 35 891.308) 54,450 048; 185,529 303} (34 825.126) $7.300 057 55,336 625
- - . - 10.357.365 20,836 233 14 826 733
13551.908) [£5 991.308) $4.450 048; [$5.529 303) $5.531.259 $27. 536 260 $19.563.7°8
- $4 882539 $5.081.828 56539 567 87 655323 340,218 772 514.720.752
- - 4.085,291 2202 280 « §7R.066 2843771 287138
- - 1107 968 1.53° 055 * 534 060 1 580 362 2430 153
. 474.310 203175 105 024 76,730 5 651 -
1BT211% 8668 143 3 316.553 2516 034 2,728,650 27308258 3.240 745
3.098 336 069 178.256 186 128 “Q7 427 750 053 2.358 173
78 321 G681 1,345 508 134 718 006 24 443 3571
- - - (25 803 §.855 §3 575 25115
304 578 Z015 508 156.592.098 - - - 8132 047
- - - - 24500 722 G55 556 75
2.185 868 16.499920 172595015 12.689.045 13.812 857 “9.180 40DA 27 256 676
. - - - 148,525 535671 T OR5T1Z
- - - - (24 500 (722855 1G58 761
- . - - 124 045 {183 284; 432 851
S2 189 868 $16,499.520 §172.595.015 $°2 685045 $13 536.945 15997 124 527 383 827
£1.837 962 510,508 B12  $158."04 967 $7.155 742 $8.986.75 $26.480 465 £32 553 60"
- - - - 10,481 414 20432 945 ‘4,759 744
$1.637 962 310,508 B12 5168 104 567 §7,153 742 519 468 205 $46 533 414 $47 353 345

Note: Capital contnibutiors net restricias to spec fic programs totaling $158 . 393.098 n fiscal year 2002 represents ianz and infrastructure

cortricJated to the ity by Flagler Zounty
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Schedule 3

City of Palm Coast, Florida

Fund Balances, Governmental Funds,
Last Seven Fiscal Years

{modified accruaf basis of accounting)

F.sca. Year
2000 2067 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Genera Fand
Rezerveg - 3285.747 3847 267 S820.57E SECE BB 5T 443855 $1103.252
Ureserved 1.242 945 2661062 2.763,569 3.714.792 5 549 129 9 "£8 444 13,572 557
Tota) gerera furg $1.242.048 32 945.878 $3 §1C.838 4 535 367 56,454 797 £10,512.138 514 675 85D
All Other Govermertal Furcs
Resarved - - 908 544 1.204.184 32158 702 7 009 D41 54 558 572
Unreserved reponted in’
Capital projects funds - 4 246 865 6871420 4 745.588 2 633 691 2 656 158 533502
Special revenue ‘unds 12.085 337 .578 1.948 095 4.840.183 5.633.586 15.633.859 245 286 53¢
Toai ail omner governmeanta. funes £12.085 %4 584 443 39 729 05§ $10.790.935 3°0.485979 325,304 068 340 505658

Neote: Tre City o Palm Coastwas rcorporatec on Decamger 37 1688
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Schedule 4
City of Palm Coast, Florida

Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds,

Last Five Fiscal Years
{modified accrual basis of accounting)

Revenues

Taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmeantal revenues
Charges for services

Fines ana forfeitures
Impact fees

ContribLtions

Irvestment Eamings
Misceilangous

Total reverues

Expenditures

Current:
General government
Publ.c safety
Transportaticrn and physical enviranment
Cuiture and regreatian
Capita. outlay
Debt Service:
Princ.pal
Interest and Other
Total expenditures

Excass of revenues pverunaer) expentditures
Qther Financing Sources {Uses)

Sawe of capital assets

Loan and capital lease preceeds

Transfers In

Transfers Out

Total ather financ.ry sources (Uses)

Met change in fung halances

Deb: Service as a percentage of nancapital
expenuitures

Fiscal Year
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
$11.358.200 $11.571.061 $12.941.6810 516,174 220 521.670.830
2.750 824 42098677 56104893 6525567 G.761.25%
8 356 761 2140974 3.374 885 5 604588 4522 431
478.571 846 087 1.574.693 2687712 3.952.644
a0.7%5 159.381 129.910 227 706 658 468
- 2313325 4.002,575 15,220,838 11.503.871
- - - 146,100 7.396 000
173 786 186.128 197 1856 T41.845 2328074
1.316.955 247 616 5.008 14 868 14,831
24 565892 21,674,548 28137 872 46.723.567 58.436.717
4.711.5837 6 841677 8.455.664 TET3.846 J.130.835
2. 288,508 2.681.225 3.549 167 4280179 6.183.208
4 BE9.617 3.365.153 4,475 095 4 357 Q76 5657.983
712.316 602 408 1.002 543 1.536.105% 177350
g 840.516 3548620 11.260C 891 G 431598 14,409 198
B4 995 2.588,933 77.510 13830 55158
84.073 33,337 TT 983 23106 G 6534
13,571 566 19671053 28 839 857 27 A40 314 38225917
4,994 326 2.003 496 {701,935 19,283 253 20.210.800
- - 405,280 - -
G54 279 a2 811 53811 - -
900.218 G980 622 504 436 G73133 819.193
(1043185} {1.096.522) {879 936} {1.280.969) {1.673.682)
811,310 {17.089) 983.521 (307.832) (854 485
S8 805.636 %1.986,407 $281.606 S18.975421 $19.356 311
1.18% 19.51% 0.55% 0.90% 027%

Note: The City of Paim Coast was incorporated on December 31 1399
Irfarmation regarding Cap tar Qutlay is not available far fiscal years 2000 and 2001.
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Scheduie 6

City of Paim Coast, Florida
Direct and Cverlapping Property Tax Rates,
Last Seven Fiscal Years

{rate per $1,000 of assessed value)

Overlapping Rates (2)

City East Flagler 5t Johns River Florida Intand
Fiscal Direct School Flagler Mosquito Control  Water Mapnagement Navigation
Year Rate (1) District County District District District
2000 - $4.5870 $6.5157 30 3420 50,4820 $0 0440
2001 315000 9.46800 510910 0.33300 047200 0.0410¢
2062 3.5000C 911800 524120 0.31500 0.48200 0.03850
2603 3.40000 9.04900 5.26700 0.29100Q .45200 0.03850
2004 3 40000 8.81700 5.36380 0.25200 146200 0.03850
2005 3.40000 8.61200 5.3%380 0.23500 0.48200 003850
2006 3.40000 8.336Q0 4068380 0.18800 0.46200 0.03880

Source: Flagier County Tax Collector

Note: The City of Palm Coast was incorporated on December 31, 1629

{13 The City's basic and direct tax rates are the same. The basic tax rate (s limnited to $10.00 per thousana by the State of Florida. Any additional amount

requires a majorty vote of the city's resicents.

{2) Overlapping rates are those local and county governments that apply to property owners within the City of Palm Coast.
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Schedule 7

City of Palm Coast, Flerida
Principal Property Tax Payers,
Current Year and Last Ysar

2006
Parcentage of Percentage of

Taxable Total City Taxable Total City

Assessed Taxable Assessed Assessed Taxabie Assessed
Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Value
HARBOR CLUB OWNERS ASSN. INC 516670324 1 0.373% 18,575 324 0.5368%
CEMTEX HOMES 16128102 2 C 340% -
SEAGATE HOMES INC 13 B25.90% 3 R R - -
PALM COAST HOLDINGS IMC 12 47536 985 4 G 280% B 473,475 5274
GRAND CLUB LLC THE 10 BBE 977 5 0 242% -
MOW-RC-FL-PALM HARBOR LLC ‘0557 227 2] 0.238% - -
WAL-MART STORES INC 973 253 7 0.21%% 5,085 408 E 02945
HOLIDAY BUILOERS INC 9224 089 g 0 2C8% - -
CRESCENT RESQURCES INC 7875165 3 0.1774% 8731812 [ 0.254%
AMARAEL CUSTOM HOMES INC 6734875 N 0152% -
COMMONWEALTH PALM COAST CORP - 1308714 z
GRAND CLUB LLC THE - 11 241,803 3
WACHOVIA TRUST COMPANY 5117.534 4
INTERWEST CONSTRUCTION iNC 7361 708 5
LONGWIEW VILLAGE - £.945 340 ]
HOME DEPOT USA INC 5,201 085 1C

2.537% S56.874 (32

Source; Flager County Tax Collactor

$'12.762 886

Note: Tre ity of Palm Coasl was ncorporated on December 3°. ' 995

ntcrmslizn from oros years 15 1o avalabie




Schedule 8

City of Paim Coeast, Florida

Property Tax Levies and Collections,
Last Six Fiscal Years

Taxes Levied

Collected Within the
Fiscal Year of the Levy

Collections

Totat Collections to Date

Fiscal Year Ended for the Percentage in Subsequent Percentage
September 30, Fiscal Year Amount of Levy (1) Years (2} Amount of Levy
2001 ) 5021775 4.882.939 97 .24% - 4.882.83% a7.24%
2002 5,206,826 5.981.826 85.37% 24,958 6.006 784 96.78%
2603 5744718 6.514 609 96.58% - 5.514.609 96 58%
2004 8.174.413 7 855523 896.10% 8,946 7.862.489 G6 18%
2005 10.565.776 10.211.826 85.65% 29,558 10.241.384 86 G3%
2006 15.112 507 14 602 739 96.63% - 14.602.736 96.63%

Source; Flagler County Property Appraiser

Note: The City of Palm Coast was incerporated on December 31. 1889, No taxes were levied in fiscal year 2000,

{1y Taxes are levied on hovember 1 of each year. Taxes are due by Marcnh 31 of the following vear. Taxes paw prior ta Margen 31
receive discounts of up to 4% See note 1 of the financial statements for more details.

{2; Details reiating to collections in subsequent years 1s unavailabre. Subsequent collections have been applied to fiscal years basecd on

an estimate of collections
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Scheduie 10

City of Palm Coast, Florida
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding,
Last Seven Fiscal Years

General Bonded Debt Outstanding _

Percentage

Taxable Taxabie
Fiscal Local Government Assessed Value Assessed Vaiue Estimated Per
Year FPooled Loan (a) Total of Property of Property Population Capita
2000 - $ - 8 - - 30.787 -
2001 1.605 000 1.605.000 1,584 214.203 0.1C% 32.732 49.03
2002 2.520.000 2 52G.000 1.773.378.865 0.14% 35.443 71.00
2003 - - 1.683.740.628 - 38.348 -
2004 - - 2.405.8586.531 - 42.850 -
2005 - - 3,094 404 215 - 50.484 -
2008 - - 4,444 854,928 - 58.218 -

Note: The City of Palm Coast was incorporated on December 31. 1688, No taxes were levied in fiscal year 2000.
Details regarding the city's outstanding dekt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

Population for calendar year 2000 from the U §. Census Bureau. Population estimates for calendar year
2001-2008 py the Bureau of Economic and Business Research, Unwersity of Figrida.

(a) FY 2001 and 2002 amounts are a loan from the Florida Association of Counties loan paol.
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Schedule 11

City of Palm Coast, Florida

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
As of September 30, 2006

Estimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unit Qutstanding Applicable (a) Debt

Cebt repaid with praperty taxes

Fiagler County Schoel Baard District Refunding Bonds £1.855.000 56.03% 31.039.368
Flagiar County General Obligation Bonds. Senes 2005 32 495.000 56.35% 18.312 345
Flagler County General Obligation and Refunding Bonds. Series 1998 1.640.000 56 35% 924 211
Flagler County Limited General Obligation Bonds. Series 2005 £.060.000 56.35% 3415074
Other debt

Flagler County Schaool Board District Certificates of Participation 84.195.000 56.03% 47,174,968
Flagler County School Board Oistrict Special Public Education Qutlay Advance 12.497.234 56.03% 7.002 278
Fiagler County Schaol Board District State School Bonds 2.810.000 56.03% 1.574.480
Flagler County Schoal Board District Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 12,690 000 56.03% 7.110.284
Flagler County School Board District Revenue Bonds 2.550.000 £6.03% 1.428.780
Flagler County Capital mprovement Revenue Bonds. Series 2005 34.105.000 56.35% 19.219.654
Flagler County Nates Payable 18.463.032 56.33% 10.404 723
rlagler County Special Assessment Note, Senes 2002 2.480.000 56.35% 1.397 588
Flagler County - Other Dabt 970.998 56.35%; £52.272
Subtotal. overlapping dent 119.556,007
City Direct Debt 399,828
Total Direct and cverlapping debt $119.955 835

Sources: Assessed value data used {0 estimate applicable percentages provided by the Flagler County Property Appraiser.
Debt cutstanding data pravided by each gavernmental unit.

Note: Overlapping govenmants are those that coincide. at least in part. with the geographic boundaries of the aity. This schedule estmates the
partion of the outstanding debt of thase overlapping gavernments that is borne by the tesidents and businesses of Palm Coast. This process
recognizes that, when considering the city's ability to (ssue and repay long-term debt. the entire debt burden barne by the residents and businesses
snould be taken into account. However. this does not impty that every taxpayer is a resident. and therefore responsible for repaying the debt. of
gach overlapping gavernment.

{a) Far debt repaid with property taxes. the percentage of overlapping dett applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values.

Appicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental units' taxable value that s within the city's
boundaries and dividing ¢ by sach unit's 1otal taxable assessed value. This same formula s used for other overlapping debt.

54



Seheduie 12

City of Paim Coast, Florida
Legal Debt Margin Information,
Last seven Fiscal Years

“he Consuiutan of the State of Flonaa
Flonda Statutes 200 181 ard the City of Paim Caast Cnarter
sets ro legal debt margin
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Schedule 12

City of Palm Coast, Florida
Pledged-Revenue Coverage,

l.ast Seven Fiscal Years

Utility Revenue Bonds

Rate
Utility Less: Stabilization Net

Fiscal Service Operating Transfers Available Debt Service

Year Charges (1) Expenses (2) To/{(From} (3] Revenus Principal Interest Coverage
2000 - 3 - - - $ - 3 - -
2001 - - - - - - -
2002 - - - - - - -
2003 - - - - - - -
2004 16.044 561 9.149.504 1.800.000 4 995057 - 4.442.773 1.12
2005 21.744.036 11.451.648 3.300.000 £.992 388 - 4.442.773 1.57
2006 26.553.042 17.933.309 - 8.659.733 1.845,000 4,405 873 1.38

HNote: The City of Palm Coast was incorporated on December 31, 1958, Deiails regarding the city's outstanding debt
can be found in the notes to the financial statements. The ity purchased the local water and wastewater utility

on Ootober 30, 2003, issuing revenue bonds to fund the purchase

(1) Gross revenues include operating revenue of the system and interest earnings. Interest earnings from construction

funds are excluded.

{2) Operating expenses include operating and administrative expenses of the system.

(31 Transfers to the Rate Stabilization account decrease net revenues and transfers from the Rate Stabilization
account increase net revenues per the bond resolution
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Schedule 14

City of Paim Coast, Ficrida
Demographic and Economic Statistics,
Last $ix Calendar Years

Personal Per
Income Capita
Calendar (thousands Personal School Unemployment
Year Population of dotlars) Income Enroliment Rate
2000 30.767 $1.194 237 $538.816 §.160 38%
2001 32732 1282.887 39.184 8807 4.6%
2002 35.443 1,.391.448 39.259 7.054 54%
2003 3B8.348 1.548 551 40.382 7.586 5.0%
2004 42 850 1.732 909 40.441 8. 464 4.4%
2005 50 484 - - 9.554 3.5%

Sources: Populatior for calendar year 2000 from the U.S. Census Bureau, Population estimates for calendar year 2001-2005 by the
Bureau of Economic and Business Research, University of Florida. Personal income data per the U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis. 2005
data not availabie as of the financial statement date. Schaool enroliment from the Flagler County School Board. Unemplayment rates are
from the Florida Agency for Workforoe Innovation.

Note: The City of Paim Coast was incorporated on December 31, 1899,
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Schedule 15

City of Palm Coast, Florida
Principal Employers,

Last Year and Three Years Ago

2005 2003
Percentage Percentage

of Tota! County of Total County
Employer Employees Rank__Employment (a) Employees Rank Employment (a)
Flagler Courty Schools 4,500 1 5.42% 1200 1 553%
Pair Coast Daa 900 2 325% 1.032 2 4.75%
Wal Mart Stores 500 3 2.17% 350 3 1.61%
F.orida Hospta-Flagler 532 4 1.82% 340 4 1.57%
Cty of Pam Coast 310 5 1.12% 23 9 0.81%
P.blix Supermarket 175 8 0.63% 19 5 0.88%
Algertson s 1685 7 0.60% - -
Wrn-Dixe Stores 18C 8 0.58% 176 3] 0.78%
Grana Oaks Hea th & Reham tatcn 12 g 0.42%
Faa - Certer for Managemert Develapment 15 10 042% -
Amrerican Radicn ¢ Compary Ing 137 7 0.63%
Bevery Health & Rehakilitation - 135 8 0.62%
Agcom Energy Systers. |mc 31 10 Q.80%
Tota, 4577 18.62% 3518 17.59%

Source. Erterprse Flagler. F.agler County Cramper of Commerce

Mote: Irformatior for 2005, 2004 and years pror to 2003 18 unavailable.

fa) Sratgucs re ating o total oty employmen: are unavailable The City of Palrm Coast represerts approximately 7C% of the wotal

populatizn of Flag er County
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Schedule 1§

City of Palm Coast, Florida

Full-time-Equivaient City Government Employees by Function/Program,
Last Sever Fiscal Years

Full-time-Equivalent Empioyees as of September 30

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Function/Program
General Gavernment
Ciy Manage- - - 2 2 2.5 3s 35
Commuanity Relanans - - - - - 3 4
City Clerk - - 1 1 1 3 4
Genera Services 15 g 975 3 13 15 18
Information “eck & Commur cations - - - 1 2 7 2
Community Devecarrent - 13 7915 22 95 6 14 .7
Buldirg ard Coge Enforcarert - - - 4 08 545 33 &
Fireg - 25 30 33 38 kY 44
Law Enforzement - - - - - - 1
Pubue Works - 25 3 3z 24 a7 55
Ernginesnng - - - - - - g
Recreation and Parks - 3 12°3 1513 17.13 23.03 3163
Captal @-ojects - - - -3 1586 1a 7
VWater and Wastewater Utaty (1 - - - - B7 &1 0
So1a Waste - - - - - 2 Z
Stormwater Managemant {2} - - - - - 16 ‘
Flest Managemert - - - 2 4 4 5
Tatal 1% 75 118.03 132.688 227 03 31003 ATBE3

Source: City Buaget

Notes: A ful-ume emp cyee 1s schedaled o work 2 D80 nours per year. including vacatan and sick iegve. F re employees not including adminisirative positions; are schedJlea
wwork 2 786 hoars per year wncleding vacation and sick leave  Fui-trme-equivalent employment 1s calcuiated by dwading total lakar hours by 2.756 for Fire. and 2.080 for al:
other emp cyees.

“ne City of Pam Cogst was inco-porates on December 31, 1955,

:1: The city purchased the local water anc wastewater Jtity on Ostober 30 2003,

121 THe city ang t1e Paim Coast Zemmunity Service Corporation (PCCSCI merged dunng fiscal year 2008 creating the Stormwater Managemernt depatment.
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Schedule 17

City of Palm Coast, Florida

Operating Indicaters by Function/Program,
Last Five Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
2002 2003 2004 2005 20086
Function/Program
General Government
Building Permits tssued
Residential - 2818 4,347 3.299 2187
Commercial - 77 a7 130 56
Gther - 3.308 4852 5,259 £.908
Total 5363 §.202 9,098 S 688 9149
Building Inspections - 67778 35873 69047 42 493
Code Violaticns
Total Code Viotations 3.634 9,395 10,857 14 528 15.743
Code Violations Cleared 227 3.594 2.791 7786 9820
Expendiures per Cleared Vialation - $126 5208 S111 Mg
Fire and Rescue
Total Fire Calls 143 185 238 158 192
Total EMS Calls 1.558 1,886 2.582 3.080 2.418
% Responses under 5 Minutes 51.00% A0.005%% 44 00% 52 .00% 52.00%
Publc Works
Refuse Collection (Annual Tons) 15682 20.825 26.362 33,601 37.515
Recycie Caoilection (Annual Tons) 2,602 2.990 210 2.838 2.959
Street Rehabilitation (E xpenditures per capita) $78 389 340 857 363
Patnoles Reparred 397 685 454 404 780
Parks and Recreation
Developed Park Acresi 000 population 1.81 0.97 429 343 402
Recreation Program Expenditures/1000 population $14.099 $14.058 $20,168 $12.806 $16.635
Total Recreation Revenues/1000 popuiation $2.280 £2.380 52420 $3.380 53725
Engineering and Stormwater (1)
Fresnwater Canal Maintenance -
100% Annual Service Required - - - - 60.20%
Existing Swale Service -
2% of Existing Swales Regraged Annually - - - - Z B0%:
Hazardous Dranage Conditions Resolved -
100%: Repaired in 24 Hours - - - - 85.70%
Water (2)
New Connections - - 3745 3751 1.603
Peak Daily Water Demand (Mithon gallons per day - - 10.08 873 11.33

Wastewater (2)
Peak Caly Wastewater Treated - - 7.07 763 538
{Milhon gallens per day)
Sources: Yarous City departments

Notes: The City of Palm Ccast was incorporated on December 31, 1899, Certain operating indicators for and priar to fiscal year 2002 are unavailable.

{1t The city and the Paim Caast Community Service Corporation (PCCSC) merged during fiscal year 2005 creating the Stormwater Managemeant dapanment.
2] The city purchased the local water and wastewater utility on October 30, 2003,
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Schedule 18

City of Palm Coast, Florida

Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program,
Last Five Fiscal Years

Fiscat Year
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Function/Program

Fire and Rescue

Stations 2 2 3 3 3

Apparatus 11 14 g 12 12
Public Works

Straets (miles) 1.032 1.032 1.077 1.078 1.222

Traffic Signais - 28 2% 29 38

Fleet Size 49 a1 113 153 238
Pares and Recreation

Acreage 481 481 602 B02 647

Playgrounds 3 3 4 4 B

Athletrc Fields 4 4 14 14 14

Cormmunity Centers 1 1 1 1 1
Stormwater (1)

Swales (miles) - - - 1.000 1.000

Drainage ditches (miles) . - - 150 150

Canals {miles) - - - 80 a0

Water control structures - - - 1% 15
Water (2%

Water Mains {miles! - - 623 623 848

Fire Hyarants - - 3.058 3.058 3.455

Capacity {miihons of gailons per day) - - 1238 12.38 12.38
YWastewater (2)

Sewers {miles) - - 475 475 580

Treatment Capacity (millions of gallons per day) - - 4.55 4 55 583

Sources: Various City departments

Notes: The City of Palm Coast was incorparated on December 31, 1989, Certain operating indicators for and prior to fiscat year 2002 are unavaitable.
No capital asset indicators are available for the general government function.

(1) The city and the Palm Ceast Community Service Corporation (PCCSC) merged dunng fiscal year 2005 creating the Stormwater Management depanment.

{2) The city purchased the iocal water and wastewater utlity on October 30. 2003,
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayvor, Ciny Council. and City Manager.
City of Palm Coast, Florida:

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-tvpe activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Palm Coast, Florida (the City), as of
and for the vear ended September 30. 2006, which coliectively comprise City of Palm Coast, Florida’s
basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 13, 2006, We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 1ssued by the
Compiroller General of the United States.

I Al C | Over Financial B )

In planning and pertorming our audit, we considered City of Palm Coast. Fleridas internal control over
tinancial repenting in order to determine our auditing procedures tor the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting, Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily
disclose all matters in the intemal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components
does not reduce 1o a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts
that would be marterial in relation to the financial statements being audited may vceur and not be detected
within a timelv period by emplovees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We
noted no matiers involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider
to be material weaknesses.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Palm Coast, Florida’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws. regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material etfect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However. providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit. and accordingly. we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Goversment Audiving Standards.

However, we noted certain matters that we reported to management of City of Palm Coast, Florida, in a
scparate letter dated December 13, 2006.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the City Council, and Federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended 10 be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

wiee by
Davtona Beach, Florida / '
December 13. 2006



CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Federal Agency

Pass-Through Entity CFDA Program Award Program
Federal Propram Number Contract! Grant Number Amount Expenditures
FEDERAL AGENCY
Department of Homeland Security
Assistance w Firefiphiers Gram 07041 DNDW.200E-FO-1TORG b3 124241 § 49,713
Passed Through Flonda Depariment of Commanity Affairs:
Public Assistance Disaster Grant-Hurmicane Charley 97036 FEMA 1539-1DR-FL 13954 13,5954
Environmental Protection Agency
Passed Through Florida Depanment of Environmenzal Proweetion:
Capitalizanon CGrants for Clean Water State Revohing Funds 66438 CSI2H001-030 WWS(03025 2A3TRIR ATESH
Capitahzation Grants for Clean Water State Revobving Funds HA 43R US120001-040  WWS0303S 14112081 7.194,940
Capitalizauon Grans for Clean Water State Revolving Funds A6.458  CSI120001-030 " SWo3040 1 200000 2769783
Federal Highway Administration
Passed Through Flonda Department of Transponaton:
Highway Planning and ¢ anstruction -
Ping 1akes Parkway Svlewalks 20205 AQ 1S9 LR AG0000
Design of Grabam Swamp Trail 20208 ADC 01 AQ 837 158 4140
PD&E Study for Palm Coast Parvway 2208 AOUBKR 175000 25a%8
Deparment of Housing and Urban Development
Community Development Block Grants State's Program 1422 7DR-3K-07-38-02-E.12 475000
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards S 11032400
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CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

(1) Basis of Preseptation:

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes federal awards activity of Ciny
of Palm Coast. Florida and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this

schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations,

(2) Loans payable:
The accompanving Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes expenditures from three
Federal loans the City has through the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) under

CFDA 66,458, The loans will be repaid over forty semiannual payments, which started on June 13, 2006.
As of September 30, 2006, the City owed FDEP $2.730.413, $13,344,081 and $2,769,785, respectively.
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CITY OF PALM COAST, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Summary of Auditors’ Results:

Financial Statements;

Twpe of audit report issued on the basic financial statements: Unqualified.

There were no reporiable conditions related to internal control over financial reporting
d:sclosed by the audit of the basic financial statements,

The audit did not disclose any noncompliance, which was material to the basic financial
staternernts,

Federal Awards:

There were no reportable conditions related to internal control over major programs
d:sclosed by the audit.

Tvpe of report issued on compliance for each major program: Unqualified.

The audit did not disclose any audit findings, which are required to be reported under OMB
Circular A-133 and Chapter 10.550. Rules of the Florida Auditor General

Major program identification:

CFDA Number 66,438 - Environmental Protection Agency, Capitalizadion Grants for
Clean Water State Revolving IFunds.

CFDA Number 20205 - Federal Highway Adminmistration, Highway Planning and
Construction

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs was $300.000.

The auditee did not qualify as a low-risk auditee.

Fipancial Statement Findings: None

Yederal Award ¥Findings and Questioned Costs: Noneg

Prior Audit Findings: No summary schedule of prior audit findings 1s required because there were
no prior audit findings related 10 federal programs.

Corrective Action Plan: There was no corrective action plan nceessary for the vear ended
September 30, 2006, since there were no audit findings related to {ederal programs in the auditors’
report for the fiscal vear.
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FANES MOORE & CO P

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Honorable Mayor, City Council, and City Manager,
City of Palm Coast, Flonda:

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Citv of Palm Coast, Florida, (the City} with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular 4-133
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the vear ended
September 30, 2006. The City’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results
section of the accompanving Schedule of lindings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts. and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs
is the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of comphance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of Amernica; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmenr Auditing
Srandards, issued by the Comprroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-1330 Audits of
Stazes, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, cvidence about the
Citv's compliance with those requircments and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance with those requirenicnts.

In our opinion. the City of Palm Coast. Flonda complied, in ali material respects, with the requirements
referred to above thar are applicable to each of 1ts major federal programs for the vear ended Scpiember
30, 2006.

IDIEED‘JI I“Q]]tml !h-et (:Dmp]iaﬂce

The managerment of the City is responsible for establishing and mamtaining eficctive internat conirol
over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants appiicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Citv's internal conrol over
compliance with requirements that could have a dircet and material effect on a major federal program in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compiiance and
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Clircutar A-133.

Our considerztion of the mnternal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control that might be material weaknesses, A material weakness s a reportable condition in
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which the design or operation ot one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a
relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws. regulations.
contracts. and grants caused by error or fraud that would be material in relation to a major federal
program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timeiy period by employees in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal controf over
compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and usc of management. City Council, and Federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anvone

other than these specified parties.
/
e e . L

Davitona Beach, Florida
December 13, 2006



JAMES MOORE & CO. P L

MANAGEMENT LETTER OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
REQUIRED BY CHAPTER 10.550 RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

To the Honorable Mayor, City Council, and City Manager,
City of Palm Coast, Florida:

We have audited the basic financial statements of City of Palm Couast, Florida (the Citv), as of and for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2006, and have issucd our report thereon dated December 12, 2006.

W conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards gencrally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits comtained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the provistions of Oftice of Management and
Budger (OMB) Circular A-133, dudits of States, Local Governments and Non-Prafit Organizarions.
Additionally, our audit was conducted 1n accordance with the provisions of Chapter 10.350, Rules of the
Auditor General, which govemn the conduct of local governmental entity audits performed 1n the State of
Flonda and require that certain ttems be addressed in this letter.

We have i1ssued our Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government dudiring
Standards, Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and on Internal
Control Over Compliance i Accordance with OMB Circular A-132, Chapter 10.330 Rules of The
Auditor General and Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Disclosures in those repons and
schedules, which are dated December 13. 2006, should be considered in conjunctior. with this
management letter.

Those rules {Section 10.354(1)(h) 1.) require that we address in the management letter, if not already
addressed in the auditors™ report on intemal control and on compliance and other matters, whether or not
corrective actions have been taken io address significant findings and recommendations made ir the
preceding annual financial audit report. The City has properly corrected all the findings and
recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report.

As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Secuion 10.334(13(h} 2.}, the scope of our audit
included a review of the provisions of Section 218.415, Florida Starutes, regarding the investment of
public funds. In connection with our audit, the City of Palm Coast, Flonda has complied with Section
218.413, Flornida Statutes.

The Rules of the Auditor General (Sections 10.534¢1)(h) 3. and 4.} require disclosure in the management
letter of the tollowing matters if not already addressed in the auditors” reports on internal control over
financial reporting and on compliance and other matters: (1) recommendations to improve financizl
management, accounting procedures, and internal controls; (2) violations of laws, rules. regulations, and
contractual provisions or abuse that have occurred, or were likely 1o have occurred, and were discovered
within the scope of the audit: (3) improper or iliega! expenditures discovered within the scope of the
audit that may or may not materialiv affect the fnancial statements; (4) improper or inadequatc
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accounting procedures (e.g., the omission of required disclosures from the annual financial statements);
failures to properly record financial transactions: and other inaccuracies, shortages, defzlcations. and
instances of fraud discovered by. or that came to the attention of, the auditor. Our zudit disclosed the
following comments and recommendations made to assist the City Council and management in
administering future operations:

Accounts Pavable Vendors

We noted in the year under audit several duplicate vendors used by the City. We recommend an
employee at the City penodically review vendor lists for any unusual patterns, such as names that
may be similar, but not identical to the names of approved vendors and vendors that have multiple
addresses. In addition, the person periodically should inspect files of unpaid invoices and vendor
statemens to look for invoices that appear different from the normy consecutive vendor invoice
numbers; preprinted and not customized forms; different delivery addresses; different telephone
numbers. purchase order numbers, item descriptions, prices, or other unusual patterns: old or
unusual vendors who recently had an address change; or current activity on an old or outdated
vendor. Such a review can deiect possible fraud involving accounts payabie. I the vahidity of a
vendor is questioned. an appropriate person should take steps (o verify the vendor’s existence.

Grant Administration

We noted the City does not have its grant compliance monitoring, reporting and accounting duties
centralized. These duties are currently shared between several individuals. We also noted lack of
communication between departments that appbed and were awarded grants and the accounting
department. which has lead to delavs in accounting for grants. We recommend the City put an
employee in charge of momtoring compliance with grants, maintaining all grant agreements and
CFDA or CUSFA numbers, ensuring all reporting is done timely, and ensuring accounting for those
grants 1s accurately done. This employee could also research new grants the City mayv he eligible
for and fill out the applications.

Moath-End Closing and Upper Level Accounting Personnel Monthly Duties

We noted the City does not have a set of written procedures that are performed on a regular basis
by upper level accounting personnel. In order to ensure thal all accounting and review procedures
are documented and performed on a timely basis, we recommend that a comprehensive checklist be
prepared to be used by both the accounting and servicing departments to cnsure all duties involyed
in closing the beoks on a monthly basis and performing all required reporting are done. The
checklist should cover all procedures that the City determines need to be performed on a periodic
basis inciuding. but not limited to, month end procedures such as bank reconciliations, and general
ledger account analysis. The checklist should also include the procedures performed by the Chiuef
Accountant. Director of General Services and City Manager during moenth-end closing, and it
should &lso include a list of reports submitted by the upper accounting personnel 1o other
sovernmental entities on a regular basis or annual basis for compliance purposes. Implementation
of such procedures we will improve efficiency. reduce the nsk of procedures not being performed
umely, and provide an easy transition {for new accounting staff in case of turnover.

Password Policy and MUNIS Administrative Access

We noted the City does not have wnten policies over computer password uses. The City requires
passwords 1o be at lcast 8 characters long and the system requires employvees to change their
passwords every 90 days. However, that requirement 15 not documemted in the City’s policies and
procedurcs. We recommend these policies be documented in writing and we recommend passwords



be at least six characters. preferably including a combination of letters, numbers, and a svmbol
(such as & § or #). This will reduce the nisk of unauthorized access into the City’s computer
network. We also recommend the IT personnel who have access to all emplovees’ network
passwords not be given administrative access into MUNIS. This gives them access 10 all MUNIS
user passwords and therefore unlimited access to MUNIS.

Florida Building Code Statute 553.80

Flonda Statute 35380 (Flonda building code enforcement), which restricts revenues and
cxpenditures related to Florida building code enforcement was not closely monitored during the
fiscal year by the City. This statute requires revenues and expenditures related to enforcement of
the Flonda Building Code be monitored and any excess revenues over expenditures either be
refunded or be carried over to the next {iscal year as restricted, We recommend the City closely
monitor revenues and costs related to this function going forward and implement a policy regarding
any unspent revenues. We noted in fiscal vear 2006, all revenues werc spent in accordance with the
statute.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In August 2004, the GASB 1ssued Statement No. 45, Accownting and Financial Reporting by
Emplovers for Postemplovment Benefits Other Than Pensions, effective for the Clty’s fiscal vear
beginmng October 1, 2008, Statement No. 45 requires accrual-based measurement, recogrition and
disclosure of other posteriployment benefits (OPEB) expense, such as retiree medical and denial
costs. over the emplovees™ vears of service. along with the related liability. net of any plan assets.
The City does not pay for health insurance [or retirees, but has a poiential implicit rate subsidy due
to Florida Statute Section 112.0801 which states “Retirees and their cligible dependents shall be
offered the same health and hospitalization insurance coverage as is offered to active emplovees at
a premium cost of no more than the premium cost applicable to active employees™. In health
insurance plans where a government's retirees and current cmplovees are insured together as g
group, the premiums paid by the retirees may be lower than they would have been if the rctirees
were insured separately  this is called an implicit rare subsidy. We recommend the City develop a
plan to accumnulate the necessary information to implement this plan, which may inciude engaging
an actuary',

he Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.534(1)(h) 5.3 also regaire that the name or official title and
lezal authority for the primary sovemment and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed
in the managerment letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, City of Palm Coast,
Florida, was incorporated on December 31, 1999 under Chapter 99-448, Laws of the State of Florida.
There are no component units related to City of Palm Coast, Florida as of September 30. 2006.

The Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.5334(1)(h) 6.a.). require that we comment as (o whether or
not one or more of the conditions described in Scction 218.303(1). Florida Statutes. regardimg
determination of financial emergency have been met. In connection with our audit, we determined that
City of Palm Coast. Florida, has not met one or more of the conditions described i Section 218.303(1 ).
Florida Statutes. regarding determination of financial emergency.

The Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554(1)(h) 6.b.), require that we comment as to whether or
not the financial report filed with the Florida Department of Financial Services pursuant to Section
218.32(1)a). Florida Statutes, 15 10 agreement with the annual financial audit report for the current audit
period. The financial report filed with the Florida Department of Financial Services pursuant to Section
218.32(1%a), Flonda Statutes, is in agreement with the annual financial audit report.



As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.334¢1)h) 6.¢.). the scope of our audn
included application of financial condition assessment procedures pursuant to Rule 10.336(7) of the
Auditor General. It 18 Management's responsibility to monitor the City’s financial condition. and our
financial condition assessment was bascd in part on representations made by management and the review
of tinancial information provided by same.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Auditor General of the State of Florida.
management, others within the City. City Council. and Federal awarding agencies and pass-through
entities and 1s not intended to be and should not be used by anvone other than these specified parties.
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Davtona Beach. Florida
December 13, 2006



GENERAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT

RESPONSE TO MANAGEMENT COMMENTS

Honorable Mavor and City Council Members:

The Financial Services Department would like to provide a response to the management
comments and recommendations submutted by the audit firm of James Moore & Co.. P.L. for the
current vear.

g
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Accounts Pavable Vendors

During fiscal vear 2006. we started a project to identify outdated and incomplete vendor
records. By September 30. 2006. we had completed approximately 70% of our work. An
Accounting Technician who is independent of the accounts pavable process currently is
responsible for updating and revicwing the vendor file. This person will also be responsible
for reviewing the vendor file for duplicate vendors or unusual patterns. We will also be
exploring the purchase of data extraction software to assist in the analvsis of vendor activity.

Grant Administration

Currently. the Chief Accountant monitors and performs the grant accounting and reporting
duties.  Individual departments are responsible for the application. compliance. and
monitoring of their own grants. The Chief Accountant and other designated staff will work to
design a more comprehensive system of grant monitoring and compliance. In addition. as
part of the annual budgeting process. the possibility of a centralized grants administration
position will be explored.

Month-End Closing and Upper Level Accounting Personnel Monthly Duties

The month-end closing process. though informally documented. has not previously been set to
formal written procedures. However. all the regular monthly procedures and reports have
been pertormed and prepared on a timely basis. The Chiet Accountant will prepare a set of
procedurcs and instructions. including monthly checklists. that will be distributed throughout
the accounting and servicing departments. In addition, procedures and checklists for external
compliance reporting will also be prepared and distributed.
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4. Password Policy and Munis Administrative Access

The policies that have been established by the City related to computer passwords will be
documented and distributed 1o the appropriate personnel by the Information Technology and
Communications depariment.  Additional restrictions will be enacted for IT personnel who
have access to network passwords so that they do not have unlimited access to Munis.

3. Florida Building Code Statute 553.8(

Florida Statute 333.80 was cnacted during fiscal vear 2006. and a formal policy regarding
excess revenues over expenditures related to Florida building code enforcement will need 10
be developed. The General Services Director and the Chief Accountant will develop and
document a monitoring system for revenues and expenditures. as well as implement a formal
policy for unspent revenues,

6. New Accounting Pronouncements

During fiscal vear 2006. both the General Services Director and Chicf Accountant have
attended several seminars relating to GASB Statement No. 45 on post-emplovment benefits,
We arc currently evaluating the best method to analvze and accumulate the information
needed 1o comply with these provisions.

(72 %) ﬁa—/}
Ray W. Brit. Jr,
(General Services Director

December 13. 2006
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